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India is a young country with a population 
that aspires to grow and develop into one of 
the leading nations of the world. It is poised 
to be one of the fastest growing economies 
globally in the next decade. It offers a large 
opportunity in its consumer economy and the 
rapidly urbanizing and growing Indian economy. 
Increased urbanization, rising aspirations of 
consumers and their higher disposable incomes 
will create new and sustainable demand for 
products and services. As its young aspiring 
population seeks to achieve a higher quality 
of life and growth it will spur development and 
growth in the economy. 

Whether it is the young executive, the small 
entrepreneur or the large enterprises – the 
aspiration to grow and capitalize on the new 
opportunities is evident.  At each step of their 
growth they require the supporting hand of a 
trusted financial partner. Fullerton India will be 
there when people need it, helping them fulfil 
their needs through their lifetime.

Meeting customers, understanding their needs 
and aspirations, customizing financial solutions 
for them is Fullerton India’s goal and mission. 
Knowing their needs helps us advise them on 
the right financial solutions. 

Today, Fullerton India has over a million 
customers across urban and rural India whose 
aspirations have become a reality with the 
financial services that it offers - helping fulfill 
their needs and aspirations, with simple financial 
solutions. So that, they too can take advantage 
of the growing opportunities in today’s world. 

Through its vast network of over 325 branches 
and over 6000 employees Fullerton India 
reaches out to a wide customer segment, 
providing a range of financial solutions for 
a variety of needs. Financial services of the 
company include financing of motorcycles to 
commercial vehicles; home mortgage loans to 
home improvement loans; working capital loans 
for funding the growth of small and medium 
enterprises (SME’s), business loans for the 
self-employed; from micro loans for livelihood 
advancement in rural areas to personal loans for 
education and medical exigencies, … Fullerton 
India meets all these financial needs and more.
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Fullerton India Credit Company Limited is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with the Reserve 

Bank of India. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd.,– which in turn is a 

wholly owned a subsidiary of Temasek Holdings – the investment arm of the Government of Singapore. 

Fullerton Financial Holdings, invests in financial institutions in emerging markets, bringing an operational 

perspective to all investment decisions. The prime areas of focus are Business and Consumer banking. 

Within Business Banking, it focuses on the Commercial, SME and Self Employed Mass Market segments. 

In Consumer Banking, the main focus is on the Mass Affluent and Mass Salaried segments. 

Fullerton India is a retail finance company with over a million customers and has a nationwide presence 

through a network of over 325 branches and over 6000 employees. Through its vast network, the company 

reaches out to a wide customer segment across urban and rural areas and offers a complete range of 

financial products for a variety of needs. Products include financing of motorcycles to commercial vehicles, 

home mortgage loans to home improvement loans,  working capital loans for funding the growth of small 

and medium enterprises (SME’s), business loans for the self-employed, from micro loans for livelihood 

advancement in rural areas to personal loans for education and medical exigencies and more.  

ABOUT US
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

As a dynamic young country with 
a rapidly urbanizing and growing 
middle class, India has the 
potential to be one of the largest 
economies in the world. Fullerton 
India’s aim is to play a pivotal 
role in fulfilling the aspirations 
of a growing India.
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Dear Shareholders 

Global macroeconomic conditions have remained 
challenging in 2011-2012.  The Indian economy has 
similarly been impacted, having grown at a slower pace 
of 6.5% compared to 8.4% in the preceding two years.  
India’s outlook over the longer term however, remains 
positive. As a dynamic young country with a rapidly 
urbanizing and growing middle class, India has the 
potential to be one of the largest economies in the world.  
We expect the need for consumer, small enterprise and 
rural financial services to continue to show strong growth 
in the coming years and Fullerton India’s aim is to play a 
pivotal role in fulfilling the aspirations of a growing India.   

For Fullerton India, our desire is to provide the most 
appropriate products and services which best help our 
customers to meet their needs, grow and prosper.  In this 
last year, I am pleased to report that we have made good, 
steady progress to meet this goal.  We now have over 
a million customers, and our assets under management 
have grown 25% from last year.  We have extended our 
reach in both urban and rural geographies.  As at end 
June 2012, we have over 325 branches, including our 
100 Gramshakti branches, which provide the important 
last mile connectivity for financial services in over 10,000 
villages and towns.   

Our new products have been well received, and we 
continue to improve and adapt our risk management 
policies to suit a more volatile operating environment.  
We have made good use of technology to streamline 
processes and improve customer service.  

 

Our staff remains our most important asset, and we will 
continue to invest in our human capital.  The launch of our 
Management Development Academy and Management 
Trainee Programs this year will ensure that we have a 
steady pipeline of talent.  In addition to the provision of 
core financial services, we believe Fullerton India must 
contribute to the communities in which we operate. I am 
very pleased to see the progress made in the corporate 
social programs developed and run by Fullerton India 
staff, through which over 23,000 rural households have 
benefitted.   

On behalf of my colleagues on the Board of Directors,  
I would like to commend the excellent efforts of the entire 
team at Fullerton India, under the able leadership of our 
MD & CEO, Shantanu Mitra and his senior management 
team, for building a firm foundation for Fullerton India to 
support its growth in the coming years.  We would also like 
to express our gratitude to all our stakeholders who are 
helping to shape the future of Fullerton India.

With best wishes

Gan Chee Yen 
Chairman  

7



As part of our new strategy,  
we have rationalized branches, 
considerably strengthened risk 
management systems and 
shifted focus to both secured 
products and higher income 
segment borrowers.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders

The year 2011-2012 has been a watershed year for the 
company. Despite strong headwinds in the economy, 
Fullerton India reported highest profits since inception, with 
profit after tax at Rs 49.8 Crores rising 18 times over last 
year.  Assets Under Management increased by 25% to 
touch almost Rs 4000 Crores. Despite the adverse interest 
rate environment, loan disbursals increased by 12% and 
gross income increased by 13 %. Considerable focus on 
risk management, process improvements and productivity 
has resulted in significant improvements in portfolio 
quality, expenses and therefore cost income ratio. Total 
expenditure including credit losses, improved by 14%.

These improvements reflect the sustained results of 
many initiatives implemented earlier in 2010-11. Our 
primary focus over the last year has been to strengthen 
the Balance Sheet by rebalancing the company’s loan 
portfolio. As part of the new strategy, we have rationalized 
branches, considerably strengthened risk management 
systems and shifted focus to both secured products and 
higher income segment borrowers. In the coming year, 
we hope to add more secured loan products to our range 
of offerings. These will be differentiated offerings for both, 
individuals and SMEs in urban and rural markets.

Significant emphasis has also been put in the areas of 
process improvements, automation, enhanced analytics 
capabilities as well as customer service and management. 
These are areas that we will continue to put emphasis on 
in the coming year.

To lead the transformation, I am happy to report that 
over the last year the company has attracted several 
experienced bankers and retail banking specialists in the 
top management team. Significant addition of new and 
experienced talent has been made in all key areas from 
risk management, sales and finance. 

Fullerton India, has enviable reach in markets across the 
country with presence in over 300 distinct geographies. 
We expanded our reach further last year in both urban 
and rural geographies. As on 30th June 2012, our branch 
network had grown to over 325 branches which service 
our sizeable customer base of over one million today 
through over 6000 employees. Within this we have  
100 branches in rural markets that cater to over 10,000 
villages and towns with a customer base of over 310,000, 
providing them a complete range of credit services and 
products.  This has helped in furthering financial inclusion 
in the largely under-served rural markets, by providing 
access to organised financial services.

Despite the current headwinds in the economy, we believe 
that the long term fundamentals are intact and there 
is immense growth potential in our business. We also 
believe that increased consumer demand will come from 
the emerging centres in Tier 2, Tier 3 & Tier 4 locations 
and the rural geographies which are experiencing rapid 
urbanisation and infrastructure development. Fullerton 
India, has sizeable presence in such locations with 60% 
of the network covering such markets. This puts us in a 
unique position of strength to capitalize on the growth in 
these areas in the future.

I would like to thank our shareholders - Fullerton Financial 
Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Temasek Holdings Pte. Ltd., 
Singapore, for their support. We greatly appreciate 
their faith and confidence in the team managing this 
organisation and look forward to their continued support 
in growing the business. I would also like to thank the 
Regulators, our Bankers, and Rating Agencies for their 
continued support and confidence in us.

With best wishes

Shantanu Mitra 
Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 17th Annual Report of Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd along with the audited 
statement of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS                                      (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2011-2012 2010-2011*

1 Total Income 93,189 84,541

2 Less: Expenditure 78,304 73,140

3 Less: Net Credit Losses 7,198 8,035

4 Profit/(Loss) before depreciation 7,687 3,366

5 Less: Depreciation 2,768 3,102

6 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 4,919 264

7 Less : Provision for Taxes (60) -

8 Net Profit/(Loss) 4,979 264

9 Add : Balance brought forward from previous year (99,459) (99,670)

10 Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section 45 - IC of the RBI Act, 1934 996 53

11 Balance carried to Balance Sheet (95,476) (99,459)

12 Paid Up Capital 170,866 170,866

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OVERVIEW 

During the year under review, your Company has 
demonstrated a strong underlying momentum.

Disbursals for the fiscal 2012 were, at Rs 3,097 crores, 12% 
over the previous fiscal. 

Assets under management (representing on-book assets and 
assigned portfolios) improved by 25%, from Rs. 3,158 crores 
to Rs. 3,932 crores. Assets on book grew from Rs. 3,110 
crores to Rs. 3,551 crores. 

Total income improved by 10% over the previous fiscal, to  
Rs. 931 crore. 

Helped by strong productivity measures, costs were 
contained at Rs. 783 crores, as against Rs. 731 crores in the 
previous year.

Strong underlying momentum, improved asset quality and 
productivity has enabled your Company report a record profit 
of Rs. 49.76 crores for fiscal 2012, as compared to Rs. 2.64 
crore in the preceding fiscal.

During the year under review, there have been some 
instances of delay in depositing the Profession tax dues due 
to procedural issues. The Company has taken the necessary 
steps to streamline the process.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend 
for the financial year 2011-2012.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no issue or allotment of equity shares during 
the year. There was consequently no change in the Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital during the last financial year.

The issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Company 
as on 31st March, 2012 was Rs. 1708.66 crores. 

The equity shares of the Company are held by; 
 
a. Angelica Investments Pte Ltd - 1,62,34,05,000   
 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (95.01%)  and 

b. Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd - 8,52,56,357   
 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (4.99%)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Your Company’s total Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR), as 
of March 31, 2012, stood at 18.9 percent of the aggregate 
risk weighted assets on balance sheet, and risk adjusted 
value of the off-balance sheet items, well above the regulatory 
requirement of minimum 15 percent.

DEBT POSITION

During the year under review, the Company placed  
Rs. 2,780.40 Crores of Commercial Paper (Rs. 2,647.60 
Crores repaid during the year) and Rs. 689.30 Crores of Non-
Convertible Secured and Unsecured, Redeemable Debentures 
(Rs. 497.90 Crores repaid during the year) with various Mutual 
Funds and Financial Institutions on a private placement basis. 
The Company availed loans of Rs. 695 Crores (and repaid  
Rs. 502.03 Crores during the year) from Banks by way of long 
term and short term loans. The Company securitised assets of 
total value of Rs. 423.65 Crores. 

* Previous year’s figures regrouped based on current year’s classification.
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CREDIT RATING

(i) ICRA Ltd 

Issuer Rating of the Company 

During the year under review, ICRA Limited has reaffirmed 
the Issuer rating “IrAA+” with a stable outlook, indicating high 
credit quality and low credit risk. 

Long Term Debt Programme of Rs. 2,000 Crores

ICRA Limited has reaffirmed the rating for the Long Term Debt 
programme of Rs. 2,000 Crores of the Company, “[ICRA]
AA+” with stable outlook. Instruments with this rating are 
considered to have high degree of safety regarding timely 
servicing of financial obligations. This rating carries low credit 
risk and indicates high credit-quality. 

Short Term Debt/Commercial Paper programme 
of Rs. 3,000 Crores

ICRA Limited has reaffirmed the “[ICRA]A1+”rating to the 
Company’s Short Term Debt/Commercial Paper programme 
of Rs. 3,000 Crores. Instruments with this rating are 
considered to have very strong degree of safety regarding 
timely payment of financial obligation. Such instruments carry 
the lowest credit risk. 

(ii) FITCH RATINGS INDIA PVT. LTD.

National Long Term Debt Rating 

Fitch Ratings has reaffirmed ‘AA+ (ind)’ National Long- term 
Debt rating to the Company.

National Short Term Debt Rating 

Fitch rating has affirmed ‘F1+ (ind)’ National Short term Debt 
rating with stable outlook to the Company.

Short-term debt programme 

Fitch rating has affirmed ‘F1+ (ind)’ short-term debt 
programme rating with stable outlook to the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A detailed review of the operations, financial performance, 
risk management and future outlook of the Company and its 
business is provided under the Management Discussion and 
Analysis appearing as Annexure I to this report. 

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

a. The Company has two subsidiaries, Fullerton India   
 Foundation for Social & Economic Development (Section  
 25 Company) and Fullerton India Home Finance   
 Company Limited (FIHFCL). Both are 100% subsidiaries  
 of the Company.  
 
b. The Company holds 87.63 Crores Equity Shares  
 of Rs.10/- each aggregating to 38% of the total   
 shareholding of Fullerton Securities & Wealth  
 Advisors Ltd. 

DIRECTORS

The Board provides strategic direction to the Company and 
evaluates the effectiveness of management policies and 
overall performance of the Company.

The Company voluntarily follows the spirit of the Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement to the extent possible, though the said 
clause is not applicable to the Company, it being an unlisted 
company.   

There have been no additional directors appointed after the 
last AGM. 

The following changes to the Board have taken place during 
the financial year 2011-12.  

(i) Appointment of Directors

(ii) Resignation of Directors

The Board wishes to express its gratitude to Messrs Rozario, 
Kaviratne, Kejriwal, Sodano and Vajifdar for the valuable 
contributions and guidance provided during their tenure.

RETIREMENT OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Mr. S N Menon, a Non executive Independent Director and 
Mr. Wilson Chia, a Non executive Director are due to retire 
at the ensuing AGM of the Company. Both are eligible for 
reappointment. However, Mr. S N Menon has expressed his 
unwillingness to be reappointed. The members may please 
take note.

RESERVE BANK OF INDIA GUIDELINES

The Company complies with all the applicable guidelines and 
regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India for Category 
“A” NBFC. 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director  Category of Director Date of 
Appointment

1. Mr. Gan Chee Yen Non-Executive Director 25.08.2011

2. Mr. Alan Thompson Non-Executive Director 25.08.2011

3. Mr. Shantanu Mitra Managing Director 25.08.2011

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director  Category of Director Date of 
Resignation

1. Mr. Nihal Kaviratne Non-Executive Director 1.04.2011

2. Mr. Manish Kejriwal Non-Executive Director 20.6.2011

3. Mr. Francis Andrew 
Rozario

Chairman and  
Non-Executive Director

29.08.2011

4. Mr. Thomas Sodano Non-Executive Director 30.09.2011

5. Mr. Parvez Vajifdar Whole Time Director 20.03.2012

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

Although the Company is registered as a “Deposit Taking 
Company” with the Reserve Bank of India, it has not 
accepted any public deposits during the year under review. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
the Directors to the best of their knowledge and belief confirm 
that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual accounts, the applicable  
 accounting standards have been followed;

b. appropriate accounting policies have been selected and  
 applied consistently. Reasonable and prudent judgments  
 and estimates have been made so as to give a true and  
 fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st  
 March, 2012 and of the profit of the Company for the  
 financial year ended 31st March, 2012;

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the   
 maintenance of adequate accounting records   
 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,  
  1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company   
 and for preventing and detecting fraud and other   
 irregularities; and,

d. the Annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going   
 concern’ basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed report on Corporate Governance is given 
as (Annexure II) to this report along with the applicable 
certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief  
Operating Officer of the Company (Annexure III).

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The Auditors, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered 
Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the 17th Annual 
General Meeting. Members are requested to consider their 
re-appointment on remuneration to be decided by the Board 
(Post recommendation by the Audit Committee). A letter 
from the Auditors has been received to the effect that their 
re-appointment, if made, would be within the statutory limits 
prescribed under Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 
1956.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of the Notification no. GSR 1029 dated 31st 
December, 1988, relating to conservation of energy and 
technology absorption do not apply to the Company, being an 
NBFC. However, the Company continues to use information 
technology extensively in its operations.

In respect to foreign exchange earnings and outgo, during 
the period, there were foreign exchange outgo transactions 
totaling Rs. 73.73 lacs, relating to travel, legal and 
professional fees.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required by the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars 
of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, the names and 
other particulars of the employees are set out in a separate 
Annexure to the Directors’ Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record, their gratitude for 
all the guidance and co-operation received from the Reserve 
Bank of India and other Government and regulatory agencies. 

Your Directors would also like to thank the Company’s Clients, 
Vendors, Valued Customers, Suppliers, Investors, Bankers, 
Employees and Shareholders for their continued support 
during the year. 

Your Directors would also like to take this opportunity to 
express their appreciation for the hard work and dedicated 
effort put in by the Company’s employees and look forward to 
their continued contribution.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

  Sd/-
 Gan Chee Yen 
 Chairman

Place: Mumbai  
Date:  19th June, 2012
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OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

Macro-Economic Environment

Macro-economic conditions have been challenging in fiscal 
2011/12, both internationally and locally. 

International financial markets have faced continuing and 
prolonged uncertainty, especially in the resolution of Eurozone 
debt issues, and the weak recovery in US. 

The Indian economy slowed down in 2011/12, with growth 
and price stability emerging as key concerns. 

Inflation has been high and stubborn, and inflationary pressure 
spilled over beyond food to other segments, particularly 
manufactured products. 

Interest rates remained at peak levels for the most part of 
the year, and this impacted domestic growth and capital 
investment. India’s gross domestic product (GDP) slowed 
down to 6.5% during fiscal 2012, compared to a growth of 
8.4% in fiscal 2011. 

The last quarter 2012 was particularly weak, with GDP growth 
slowing to 5.3%, and growth moderating across all sectors. 

 

The Index of Industrial Production (IIP) recorded a growth of 
3.5% year-on-year (y-o-y) during the first eleven months of 
2011/12 compared to 8.1% increase in the corresponding 
period of 2010/11. Manufacturing sector grew by 3.7% (Previous 
Year 8.7%), and electricity by 8.7% (Previous Year 5.3%) while 
mining declined by 2.1% (Previous Year growth of 5.8%). 

Inflation, measured by the Wholesale Price Index (WPI), 
remained above 9.0% levels between April-November 2011 but 
moderated thereafter to end the year at 6.9% in March 2012. 
Average inflation for 2011/12 was 8.8% as compared to 9.5% 
in 2010/11. Food inflation declined from 15.8% in 2010/2011 to 
7.4% in 2011/12, but is beginning to increase again. 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) calibrated its policy stance in line 
with macroeconomic conditions. 

The first seven months of the fiscal saw repo rates increase 
by 175basis points from 6.75% to 8.50%.  As inflation 
moderated, and growth slowed, the RBI, between Jan 2012 
and Mar 2012, reduced the cash reserve ratio (CRR) by 125 
basis points from 6.0% to 4.75%.  In its annual policy review 
announced in April 2012, RBI reduced the repo rate by 50 
basis points to 8.00%.

Liquidity remained tight through the year. Bank borrowing 
under the liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) window of RBI 
increased from an average of INR 470.82 billion in 2010/11 
to INR 798.78 billion in 2011/12, peaking to INR 1.96 trillion 
in end-March 2012. RBI also injected liquidity through open 
market operations aggregating around INR 1.30 trillion 
between November 2011 and March 2012. 

Yields on the benchmark 10 year government securities 
increased by about 58 basis points to 8.57% at March 30, 
2012 from 7.99% at March 31, 2011. 

Systemic liquidity conditions have improved with the deficit 
reducing to around INR 835 billion as on May 31, 2012. 

Several banks have reduced their lending and deposit rates 
following the monetary policy announcement.

Non-food credit growth moderated during the year, from 
21.3% at March 25, 2011 to 16.8% at March 23, 2012, 
before picking up towards the end of the year. Non-food 
credit growth at March 30, 2012 was 19.3%.

The Union Budget for fiscal 2013 has projected the 
Government’s fiscal deficit to come down from an estimated 
5.9% of GDP in fiscal 2012 to 5.1% in fiscal 2013. RBI has 
projected India’s GDP to grow by7.3% in fiscal 2013, with credit 
growth estimated at 17.0% and deposit growth at 16.0%. RBI 
has projected inflation to be at 6.5% in March 2013.

Equity markets remained volatile during 2011/12 due to global 
and domestic events. The benchmark equity index, the BSE 
Sensex, declined by 10.4% from 19,445 at March 31, 2011 
to 17,404 at March 31, 2012.

Lower foreign institutional investment inflows,  a steeper 
slowdown in exports compared to imports during the year 
and increased energy prices contributed to a deficit of USD 
7.09 billion in India’s balance of payments during the first 
nine months of  2011/ 2012 and more particularly, to a sharp 
depreciation of the rupee.  The rupee depreciated by 14.6% 
against the US dollar from INR 44.65 per US dollar at March 
31, 2011 to INR51.16 per US dollar as on March 31, 2012, 
and further to INR 56.03 per dollar as on May 31, 2012.

Key regulatory developments in the Indian financial 
sector during 2011/12 include:

May 2011 - Interest rate on savings deposits increased by 50 
basis points from 3.5% to 4.0%.  
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May 2011 – Rates of provisioning for non-performing loans 
enhanced.

May 2011 - the report of the working group to draw up a 
roadmap for the introduction of holding company structure 
was released with key recommendations favouring the 
financial holding company structure for the financial sector, 
particularly large financial groups, with a separate regulatory 
framework for these holding companies.

Oct 2011 - Interest rates on savings accounts were 
deregulated with an uniform interest

rate to be paid on deposits up to INR 100,000 and differential 
rates permitted for deposits of over INR 100,000 depending 
on the amount.

Aug 2011 - Draft guidelines for licensing of new banks in the 
private sector released. The minimum capital requirement 
prescribed is INR5.00 billion.

Aug 2011 – The Usha Thorat Committee Report on NBFCs 
published. The paper recommends a convergence of 
governance and provisioning standards with banks, increased 
Tier 1 capital and hiving off of the smaller NBFCs from the 
ambit of RBI regulations.

Sep 2011 – Revised draft securitisation guidelines 
announced. The guidelines tightened minimum retention and 
holding period criteria and denied credit enhancements to 
direct assignment transactions. Final regulations were issued 
in Jun 2012.

Oct 2011 - Bank branch opening in tier 2 centres (centres 
with population of 50,000 to 99,999 as per census 2001) was 
exempted from prior approval of RBI.

Nov 2011 - Guidelines permitting the setting up of 
Infrastructure Debt Funds (IDF) structured as non-banking 
finance companies (NBFC) announced. Guidelines for banks 
sponsoring IDF-NBFC include cap on equity holding of 49.0% 
of the IDF-NBFC, and investment not exceeding 10% of the 
bank’s paid-up capital and reserves.

Dec 2011 - Guidelines on investments in subsidiaries and 
other companies, including investments in non-financial 
services companies announced. As per guidelines, equity 
investments by a bank in a subsidiary company or other 
financial services company cannot exceed 10% of the bank’s 
paid-up share capital and reserves. Equity investment by 
banks in non-financial services companies was capped at 
10% of the investee company’s paid-up share capital. Equity 
investments in non-financial services companies at the 
group level, including investments by the bank’s subsidiaries, 
cannot exceed 20% of the investee company’s paid-up share 
capital. Also, overall equity investments by a bank, including 
investments in its subsidiaries and other companies, cannot 
exceed 20% of the bank’s paid-up share capital and reserves.

Dec 2011 - draft guidelines for implementing the Basel III 
capital regulations in Banks announced. Final guidelines 
were issued in May 2012. Implementation to apply in phases 
beginning from January 2013 and to be completed by March 
31, 2018.

Microfinance institutions (MFIs) were brought under the 
regulatory ambit of RBI. Also, RBI decided to give priority 
sector status to bank credit to MFIs for on-lending for 
specified purposes. 

Dec 2011 - NBFC status provided to MFIs by allowing a new 
category of NBFC-MFIs having a minimum net worth of INR 
50.0 million, a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 15.0% of 
risk weighted assets and with interest on individual loans 
capped at 25.0% per annum with an aggregate margin cap of 
12.0%. Also, MFIs were allowed to raise external commercial 
borrowings of up to US$ 10 million.

Feb 2012 - Draft report of the Nair committee set up to review 
the classification and guidelines pertaining to priority sector 
lending. The committee has recommended maintaining the 
priority sector lending target of 40% of adjusted net bank 
credit. It has recommended that the distinction between direct 
and indirect agriculture lending be removed, while maintaining 
the overall target for agriculture lending at 18% of adjusted 
net bank credit and having a new sub-target of 9% for loans 
to small and marginal farmers and 7% for loans to micro and 
small enterprises. The committee has also recommended that 
deposits deployed against shortfall in achievement of priority 
sector lending targets be netted from the actual penalty for 
the subsequent years for non-achievement of targets.

Mar 2012 - A discussion paper on dynamic loan loss 
provisioning framework released, which

proposes, to replace the existing general provisioning norms. 
The objective is to limit the volatility in loan loss provisioning 
requirements witnessed during an economic cycle.

Mar 2012 – Regulations tightening (Loan to Value) LTV, capital 
adequacy and banking finance to gold-finance companies 
issued.

FINANCE SECTOR OVERVIEW

Bank Credit 

Credit growth decelerated from 21.3% in 2010/11 to 16.8% 
in 2011/12. 

Deceleration in year-on-year non- food credit growth was 
contributed by all the sectors, viz., agriculture, industry, services, 
personal loans and consumer vehicle loans. The deceleration 
reflects both demand and supply side factors. Higher interest 
rates and other monetary actions saw a deceleration in 
credit-intensive manufacturing. On the supply side increasing 
corporate stress increased risk-aversion in Banks.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Increasing stress in the corporate sector was reflected in 
the quantum jump in the corporate debt that came up for 
restructuring before the Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell 
during 2011-12. 

Retail portfolios, though, continued to hold well with 
delinquencies continuing to remain at acceptable levels.

Reflecting the deceleration in growth and the introduction of 
system-driven identification of NPAs by public sector banks 
(PSBs), the asset quality of PSBs deteriorated during 2011-12 
(up to December). Further, the capital to risk-weighted assets 
ratio (CRAR) of commercial banks, particularly, nationalized 
banks, declined during 2011-12 (up to December). These 
factors appear to have a bearing on their capacity to extend 
credit. 

Non-bank sources emerged as the dominant source for 
financing the commercial sector during 2011-12. Within non-
bank sources, external sources of funds accounted for 71 per 
cent of the increase, mainly contributed by FDI. The increase 
in domestic non-bank funds was accounted for by NBFCs 
while issuance of commercial paper (CPs) by corporates and 
subscribed to by non-banks increased significantly.

Deposit growth, too slowed in the fiscal, particularly in the 
last quarter. Term deposits grew at 13% in 2011/12 against 
15.7% in 2010/11, while demand deposits declined by 3.1% 
in the current fiscal (against a growth of 0.7% in 2010/11)

NBFC Sector 

NBFCs as a whole account for 11.2 percent of assets of the 
Indian financial system. The total number of NBFCs registered 
with the RBI, consisting of NBFCs declined from 12,630 at 
Mar 10 to 12,409 in Mar 11. The number of deposit taking 
NBFCs declined from 308 to 297 during the same period 
whereas non-deposit taking systematically important NBFCs 
(those with asset size of Rs.1000 Million or more) increased 
from 260 to 274. 

Credit growth was strong at most NBFCs in 2011/12, and 
while high interest rates reduced margins, portfolio quality did 
not show any material deterioration. However, the emerging 
market and regulatory environment pose specific challenges:

Regulatory changes, both implemented and proposed, 
will tighten the operating environment for banks. The 
securitization regulations issued in June 2012 will materially 
change the securitization and direct assignment transactions, 
and the financials surrounding. Capital release benefits that 
these transactions enjoyed and allowed major NBFCs improve 
their RoEs, will be impacted, and while these transactions will 
continue to occur if at lower levels (to meet the priority sector 
demand of banks), they will essentially serve as funding tools.

Further, proposed regulatory changes include revising the 
NPL definition to 90 days overdue, setting a minimum Tier 
1 ratio of 12% and phasing out deposit taking capability of 
NBFCs.

NBFCs depend substantially on institutional/wholesale 
funding. Regulatory changes such as the changes to 
securitization regulations and discontinuation of retail deposit 
gathering capability for NBFCs discussed above, and a 
proposed regulation capping bank finance to NBFCs for 
priority sector lending, will increase demand for bank credit. 
Both the increased demand and the potential risk-aversion 
deriving from a deteriorating wholesale credit environment 
could impact funding from banks.

Rural Finance

The Kisan Credit Card (KCC) Scheme has become a widely 
accepted mechanism for delivery of credit to farmers. With 
a view to making the KCC more user friendly, NABARD 
has enlarged its scope to cover term loans for agriculture 
and allied activities, including a reasonable component for 
consumption needs, besides the existing facility of providing 
crop loan limit. The banking system has issued 103.9 Mn 
such cards. The share of commercial banks stood at 44.4 
per cent of the total number of cards issued by the banking 
sector followed by cooperative banks (40.9 per cent) and 
RRBs (14.7 per cent).

Microfinance 

The slowdown of the rapidly growing microfinance business 
following the introduction of a tough Microfinance Act by the 
Andhra Pradesh government, affected all MFIs having a base 
in Andhra. Though the AP MFI Act was applicable only to 
Andhra Pradesh, it affected the micro-finance business across 
the country as a large part of the customer base of MFIs was 
in the state of Andhra Pradesh.

Many microfinance companies have seen significant losses 
and have had to restructure businesses. A Microfinance Bill 
is being placed before the Parliament and when enacted will 
help improve the operating conditions.

The Reserve Bank constituted the Malegam Committee to 
recommend uniform regulations for all MFIs and NBFC MFIs. 
Subsequent to the committee’s recommendations the RBI 
released a new Microfinance policy in early May 2011.  The 
new RBI policy for Microfinance stipulates interest rate and 
interest margin caps and also specifies the income segment 
of customers for Microfinance institutions (MFI). It also 
specifies that a majority of the portfolio should be micro loans 
with these parameters to be termed as a MFI. These norms 
are to be followed by micro finance institutions intending to 
avail of Priority Sector Loans from banks. 
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FULLERTON INDIA : RETAIL  & COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS

The year 2010-11 was a year of consolidation of the 
distribution structure. Last year, Fullerton India  built on this 
consolidation and grew the asset book by 25 %.

The focus as outlined last year was along the following  
4 principles:

1. Increasing per account profitability through lowering   
 operating costs and reducing origination of low profit   
 accounts. 
2. Building a wider channel partner network to aid growth. 
3. Leveraging cross-sell opportunity across the existing   
 customer base. 
4. Building the secured loans portfolio through the Two  
 Wheeler, Mortgage, Commercial Vehicle and SME   
 businesses.

Significant progress and success was achieved on each of 
the above imperatives which not only resulted in the growth 
of the book but also enhancing the profitability of the portfolio 
while containing risk..

1. Increasing per account profitability

The overall Cost to Income ratio for the business was brought 
down from 73 % to64% in 2011-12. This was achieved 
through the following:

a. Increasing productivity of the front line sales resources

•	 Focused	customer	segment	targeting,	superior	channel		
 management practices coupled with extensive training  
 led to a productivity increase of 39%.

•	 Customer	segment	mix	to	ensure	an	increase	in	ticket		
 size. The average loan ticket size per customer grew   
 by 28% thereby helping reduce the operating cost per  
 new customer, significantly.

2. Building a wider Channel network

There were sustained efforts on not only increasing the 
customer touch points through an increased Referral 
Partner network but efforts were also made to use the 
existing network to refer clients interested in new products 
like Mortgages. Effective channel management practices 
around providing real time information to the partners on 
their referred customers, transparency in referral fees and 
training on the products and processes resulted in increase 
in the numbers of referrals from these Partners.

3. Leveraging cross sell opportunity

Specially designed programs to offer loans to existing 
customers, based on their repayment history, were offered 
to clients, which had a very good response. This not only 
helped in getting additional business at a much lower 
acquisition cost but at the same time also helped prolong 
the customer’s relationship with us and increased the 
revenue per customer. 16% of the total business came 
through such cross sell initiatives.

Group Insurance policies offering protection benefits to 
customers saw a high uptake from clients with as many as 
56 % of clients acquired in 2011-12 opting for it. Specific 
offerings of Life Insurance products were also advised to 
clients.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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4. Building a secured portfolio through  
Two-wheelers, Mortgages, Commercial Vehicles 
and SME loans.

One of the strategic intents in 2011-12 was to diversify the 
portfolio by building a larger secured book. At the end of this 
year, the secured book stood at 33% of the total portfolio.

Keeping in mind the economic scenario we are in, the thrust 
will be to diversify the book and grow assets which are less 
risky. There is no plan to increase the number of branches or 
locations, but the emphasis would be to increase volumes 
from the existing network.The strategic focus for 2012-13 is 
going to be on the following:

A. Keep growing the secured portfolio to 40% of the book  
 in order to provide stability to earnings more so in the   
 adverse economic environment that we are in today.

B. Loans against Property for small businesses will be   
 another key thrust area with the objective of providing   
 the growth impetus to the asset book.

C. Increase branch profitability, especially in smaller markets  
 through productivity enhancements and exploring   
 additional fee earning opportunities.

D. Addition of Partnerships and Alliances to drive fee   
 revenue as well as assist in loan origination.

E. Grow the SME loans business by leveraging the current  
 product differentiator of debt consolidation which has   
 been well received in the market.

FULLERTON INDIA GRAMSHAKTI - RURAL 
FINANCIAL SERVICES

The rural economy in India continues to grow aided by 
a steady growth in agriculture, agri-allied and non-farm 
enterprise. However, penetration and availability of quality 
financial services in rural areas is still low.

The availability of quality financial services in rural areas is 
extremely important for the growth of the economy as this 
will enable the large rural mass market to fund the growth of 
their livelihoods. There is a growth in adoption of traditional 
agri-allied livelihoods as well as new livelihoods catering to the 
demand in urban markets.

Improved access to organized financial services is imperative 
to the advancement of  livelihoods in the rural economy. 
Besides, there is a growing demand for financing for rural 
housing, two-wheelers and small commercial vehicles and 
capital investments for micro-enterprises, which requires 
deeper penetration of financial services in these areas.  

Financial inclusion is not only a social need but imperative 
for faster economic growth. On the other hand there are 
serious implications of financial exclusion. Exclusion makes 
the population vulnerable to uncertain financial situations. It 
does not allow small enterprises and the self-employed to 
plan medium and long term growth or capitalize on business 
opportunities. Besides they cannot benefit from better and 
more consistent terms and interest rates from organized 
financial services.

Fullerton India with its long term vision of aiding advancement 
of livelihoods in rural markets created a robust branch 
network for providing them access to quality financial 
services. In the long term Fullerton India intends to to facilitate 
market linkages that will help people in these segments 
access wider markets enabling them to enhance their trade 
and livelihoods, smoothen their income flows and improve 
their quality of lives overall. 



Fullerton India’s rural business called “Gramshakti” has a 
presence in the 6 states of Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, 
Maharashtra, Karnataka, Gujarat & Rajasthan. Through its 
94 Gramshakti branches as on March 2012, Fullerton India 
services over 10000 villages and towns.  

Fullerton India’s rural business called “Gramshakti” has a 
presence in the 6 states of Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, 
Maharashtra, Karnataka, Gujarat & Rajasthan. Through its 
94 Gramshakti branches as on March 2012, Fullerton India 
services over 10000 villages and towns. 

Last mile reach – our core strength

Fullerton India Gramshakti’s mission is to cover the “last mile” 
between its branch where financial services are available and 
the home or place of business of the customer. Making quality 
financial services available at the doorstep of the customer is 
financial inclusion in the truest sense.

The Gramshakti network has an enviable reach that covers 
the last mile between the branch and the end customer in 
each village in the catchment, enabling financial inclusion 
of the under-served and un-served segments of the rural 
markets. 

Its Relationship Officers are trained to create awareness 
and promote our financial services among each customer 
segment. Each branch covers a radius of 25 km around the 
branch and services households in over 100 villages and 
small towns, in each catchment. They service customers 
at their doorstep and constantly engage in improving the 
understanding of customers on the company’s financial 
services as well as create awareness on the need for good 
credit behavior for their long term good.

Leveraging technology to service the rural 
customer

The company has invested in unique technology systems to 
enable us to serve the customer better and faster. The use of 
bio-metric authentication processes and transaction devices, 
have enabled speedier servicing of collections and also built a 
great level of transparency, trust and customer confidence. 

The branches are linked with central systems and all 
operations are online providing for access to customer 
information and transactions on a real time basis.

Innovating products for customer needs

By 31 March 2012,Gramshakti had over 310,000 customers 
providing them small loans for various livelihood advancement 
activities.  Fullerton India Gramshakti follows the value chain 
approach identifying needs of the various customer segments 
in various livelihoods and designing products to meet them. 
Over the last year the company increased its product offerings 
and reach to various segments of the rural market.

Its key offerings now include:

1) Micro loans to women’s solidarity groups 
2) Growing Enterprise Loans to micro-enterprises 

3) Merchandise loans for purchase of relevant products like  
 eco-stoves and solar lamps, cattle feed, handloom   
 machines among others. 
4) Two-wheeler Loans 
5) Commercial Vehicle Loans

Emphasis on comprehensive pre-disbursal training and 
financial literacy of all its customers on credit discipline has 
ensured complete understanding of the benefits of organized 
and collective borrowing. It has helped Fullerton India build 
strong customer relationships. 

Fullerton India plans to expand its reach and establish itself as 
a financial institution that contributes significantly to financing 
requirements of all customer segments in rural areas. To 
achieve this, the company plans to expand its network 
steadily to cover more potential rural markets in the coming 
years. It also plans to introduce more products like housing 
loans to meet the growing demand for housing as well as 
mortgage loans to small and medium businesses.  

In the last financial year 2011-12 - 10 new branches were 
added to the rural business network taking the network size 
from 84 to 94 branches.

In the year 2012-13 the plan is to expand the network by 30 
more branches in potential rural markets.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS 
OF FULLERTON INDIA

1. Credit risk  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a borrower or any other 
counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations to their 
lender. Such default may arise due to inability or unwillingness 
to meet commitments and will have a material effect on our 
financial condition and results of operations. 

2. Liquidity and Market Risk

Liquidity risk is risk to earnings or capital arising from our 
inability to meet current or future obligations as contracted. 
Market risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in 
the value of a financial instrument as a result of changes in 
market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates and 
other asset prices. In our case, market risk emanates from 
our treasury investment activities made on a proprietary book 
basis; market risks applicable on capital markets or currency 
risks do not apply to us as we do not have capital market or 
cross country exposures. 

3. Regulatory risks 

Regulatory changes in the areas including income and loss 
recognition, fee income, interest rates, collection practices, 
securitization and assignment rules. 

4. Collateral value risk

The secured lending portfolio of the company may incur 
losses due to reasons including collateral value dilution due 
to delays in legal procedures in the event of borrower default 
and shortfalls after collateral liquidation. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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5. Operational Risks

Operational risk, is the potential for loss arising from the failure 
of people, process or technology or the impact of external 
events. We endeavor to minimize our exposure to operational 
risk subject to cost trade-offs. Operational risk exposures 
are managed through a consistent set of management 
processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control 
and monitoring. 

6. Manpower retention  

Limiting non-regretted attrition and maintaining a healthy 
pipeline of talent is essential for organizational growth, 
standardization of practices and continued robustness of 
processes. 

7. Physical environment risk

Civil unrest, acts of violence including terrorism and natural 
disasters (floods, droughts, cyclones etc) could materially 
and adversely impact the businesses and well-being of our 
customers and affect our business. 

8. Reputation risk 

Even selective outsourcing with management of processes 
and controls does have an element of reputation risk on 
account of non-compliance of policies and procedures by 
employees or agents. 

Risk Management 

Risk is an integral part of the financial services business 
and an appropriate trade-off between risk and return 
ensures delivery of desired shareholder value by ensuring 
balance between business growth and sustained portfolio 
quality. Risk management can help to identify the most 
economically promising areas as well those businesses that 
are underperforming.

Our risk management approach is based on a clear 
understanding of our target market and various risks 
associated, disciplined risk assessment, outlining processes 
and procedures customized to our target market, 
implementation and continuous monitoring. The policies and 
procedures established for this purpose are continuously 
benchmarked with international best practices in line with the 
risk appetite of the organization. 

The Risk Oversight Committee, a sub committee of the Board 
of Directors, is empowered to review our risk management 
policies with respect to various risks (credit, market, liquidity, 
operational and reputation risks), investment policies and 
strategy and regulatory and compliance issues in relation 
thereto. The Committee is also empowered to review the 
risk-return profile of the company, capital adequacy based 
on risk profile of the Balance Sheet, Basel implementation, 
business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan, key risk 
indicators and significant risk exposures and implementation 
of enterprise risk management.

Our approach is to ensure compliance to policy and 
procedures and focus on prevention of potential stress, early 
detection of potential risks and correction of policies and 
procedures that permitted the occurrence. 

Recognizing changes in the financial services environment, 
risk management policies and portfolio composition are 
reviewed regularly. The portfolio mix has been migrated to 
less volatile products in terms or credit risk. Underwriting 
standards and procedures, both at a individual obligor level 
as well as at the portfolio level have been reviewed to ensure 
proactive measures are taken to build quality portfolio. Usage 
of customer credit history information with us and also with 
the credit bureau has ensured improvement in the quality of 
new accounts booked. Portfolio reviews on the credit bureau 
are done at regular intervals to analyse the risk migrations and 
take appropriate action. 

Standardization of Credit underwriting processes is given 
high degree of priority and the focus has been to centralize 
credit underwriting and delegations where necessary. Policies 
and practices have been modified with learning from internal 
and external sources. Portfolio level risk analytics continues 
to provide insight into capital allocation required to absorb 
unexpected losses at a defined confidence level. 

During the year, we also enhanced our capabilities in data 
warehousing and analytics for timely and accurate insights on 
the large customer base. This has helped us in making better 
decisions in the areas of customer relationship management, 
cross sell, risk management and fraud prevention. We have 
invested in enhancing the capability of the Risk Analytics unit 
and have also commenced using scorecards for some areas 
of credit analysis.

The company endeavors to build a sustainable 
competitive advantage by fully integrating the 
risk management discipline within all business 
verticals. 
 
Risks and concerns outlined above are being managed in the 
following manner:

1. Risk Architecture: 

The Company has a comprehensive risk management 
architecture. The Board of Directors endorses the credit risk 
strategy and approves the credit risk policies. This is done 
taking into consideration risk appetite based on estimated 
risks in the business balanced by the targeted profitability 
level for the risks taken up. The Risk Oversight Committee 
(ROC), a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, guides 
the development of policies, procedures and systems for 
managing credit risk, towards implementing the credit risk 
strategy. The ROC through its reviews ensures that Credit 
risk management is adequate and appropriate to changing 
business conditions caused by changes in regulatory, macro- 
economic and segments. 

The risk management function is independent from the 
operations and sales functions of the Company. The risk 
management function is not assigned any business targets.
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Collections, recovery and legal functions are carried out by a 
separate group independent of the credit policy and approval 
function; all collection policies and procedures are devised 
and periodically reviewed to conform to the code of conduct 
laid down. 

The Credit & Market Risk group drives credit risk management 
centrally. It is primarily responsible for implementing the risk 
strategy approved by the Board of Directors, developing 
procedures and systems for managing risk, carrying out an 
independent assessment of credit risk, approving individual 
credit exposures and ensuring portfolio composition and 
quality is as per desired standards. 

 A separate Fraud risk management team  is responsible for 
identifying, managing and preventing frauds originating from 
customers, employees and vendors at all levels of front-end 
origination, credit acceptance and collections. 

The risk analytics group performs portfolio quality 
management at an enterprise and segment level to ensure 
portfolio growth and performance is within all stakeholder 
expectations. 

The Operational Risk Group is responsible to identify, assess 
and monitor all principal risks in accordance with defined 
Operational risk policies and procedures. A comprehensive 
internal control framework encompassing all functions at an 
enterprise level and an assurance and confirmatory has been 
designed and implemented. 

The Risk Management function is adequately staffed with 
a Chief Risk Officer, General Managers for Credit Risk 
Management, Collections, Legal, Risk Analytics, Operational 
Risk & Fraud control. Additionally, managing risks in individual 
customer segments operated are responsibility of Segment 
Risk Managers..

2. Credit policy: 

All credit policies are approved by the Risk Oversight 
Committee of the Board and are periodically reviewed. 
Credit policies are designed by clearly defining target market, 
customer selection and credit acceptance criteria, credit 
approval methodology, verification, post disbursement 
monitoring, collections and remedial management policies. 
Each product, programs defining customer segments, 
underwriting standards, security structure, documentation, 
collection, remedial policies and processes are specified to 
ensure consistency. 

Credit Programs address such areas including target 
markets and customer segmentation, qualitative-quantitative 
assessment parameters, portfolio mix, prudential exposure 
limits, concentration limits, price and non-price terms, 
structure of limits, approval authorities, exception reporting 
system, prudential accounting and provisioning norms. 

Credit policies are reviewed on a periodic basis based on 
changes in macro- economic, industry / segment level and 
customer level trends including Credit Bureau learning and 
stress tested for portfolio performance to ensure portfolio 
performance is within acceptable standards. 

3. Credit underwriting: 

Credit approval and credit administration functions are 
done by an independent and separate team to ensure 
demarcation of responsibilities of customer origination and 
credit approval functions. Our credit officers evaluate retail 
credit proposals on the basis of the product policy approved 
by the Board and risk assessment criteria are periodically 
reviewed. Administering of credit approval and documentation 
is to ensure that customer selection, underwriting and 
documentation are consummated as per laid down 
processes. Technical valuations in case of mortgages and 
loan against property are carried out by empanelled valuers or 
technical teams. External agencies such as field investigation 
agencies and credit processing agencies are used to facilitate 
a comprehensive due diligence process including visits to 
offices and homes of individuals. 

4. Collateral policies and collateral monitoring: 

We have outlined clear policies and procedures for the 
selection of collateral and associated documents and have 
strengthened the monitoring mechanism. This has been 
done to evaluate portfolio at risk in the case of any pricing 
fluctuations and corrective action is taken on lending policies 
based on realization values and timelines.

5. Operational Risk Management:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate 
or failed internal processes, people or systems or from 
external events. Operational risk includes legal risk but 
excludes strategic and reputational risks. The Operational Risk 
framework is designed on both business and functional levels 
including for business groups, credit, operations, corporate 
and support functions. We have constituted an Operational 
Risk Management Committee (ORMC) to oversee the 
operational risk management in the company. The Operational 
Risk Committee oversees the management of operational 
risks and this is supported by business and functions and is 
chaired by the CEO. Functional owners have responsibility 
for management of operational risk arising from activities 
relating to legal processes, people management, technology 
management, vendor management, property management, 
accounting and financial control, tax management and 
regulatory compliance.  

6. Fraud Management: 

An independent Fraud Management department manages 
fraud risks across origination, credit acceptance and 
collection processes. A focused group for on-site and off-
site surveillance and monitoring of transactions to detect 
and mitigate frauds conducts sample document scrutiny 
where applicable and sample verification on customers and 
documents is done to validate the accuracy and authenticity 
of the origination and acceptance process. 

We seek to be vigilant to the risk of internal and external crime 
in our management of people, processes and systems and 
in our dealings with our customers and other stakeholders. 
We have a broad range of measures in place to monitor and 
mitigate the risk. Controls are embedded in our policies and 
procedures across the broader retail finance spectrum. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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7. Asset liability Management: 

The Asset-Liability committee monitors business portfolio and 
our liabilities from a tenor and interest rate perspective and 
takes corrective action to manage liquidity and market risks. 
Treasury investment policies are defined, approved, reviewed 
and monitored periodically. 

8. Regulatory changes and Compliance:  

Our business is subject to a complex regulatory framework 
comprising legislation, regulation and codes of practice. The 
nature and impact of future changes in laws, regulations and 
economic policies are not predictable and require recalibration 
of business strategy. We support changes to laws, regulations 
and codes of practice in form and content. 

We also keep a close watch on key regulatory developments 
in order to anticipate changes and their potential impact. We 
also provide our views and insights through our participation 
in industry fora. 

9. Internal Audit:

A separate department reporting to the Audit Committee of 
the Board is responsible for periodic independent evaluation 
of adequacy of internal controls across all functions in the 
organization for adherence of processes and procedures as 
well as regulatory and legal requirements. 

10. Operations:  

The transaction booking, maintenance and service functions 
are separate from both business and credit units. Operational 
processes for delivery of products and services are constantly 
refined for best practices, controls and efficiencies. 

11. Employee recruitment & retention:

Employee recruitment is done through employee referrals, 
placements from educational institutions and advertisements. 
The recruitment process is done by company officials and 
the process includes verification checks.  Several employee 
engagement initiatives have been initiated aimed at employee 
retention and loyalty.   

12. Training: 

To disseminate various company policies, processes and 
values amongst the teams, training programs are devised 
by Human Capital department to deliver identified training 
packages that are aimed to provide guiding principles and 
practical insight of all processes and values for the teams.  
The training also includes skill enhancement to ensure 
proper development of in-house talent to take up greater 
responsibilities. 

13. Rewards and recognition: 

Reward & recognition policies are designed to help employee 
retention and build employee loyalty and commitment. 
Incentive policies are also devised and implemented to reward 
desired behavior and display of core values. The policies are 

frequently reviewed inline with market to ensure we retain and 
reward the best talent in the company. Awareness campaigns 
on “Whistle Blowing” have established desired results.    

14. Special purpose committees:

a. Risk Oversight Committee (ROC): Risk Oversight 
Committee, a sub-committee of the Board reviews Credit and 
Treasury policies, portfolio indicators, triggers and exposure to 
segments; reviews exception to processes and policies and 
oversees Credit program performance. 

b. Audit Committee: The Audit Committee, a sub 
Committee of the Board, oversees the Company’s financial 
reporting process and the disclosure of financial information 
to ensure that financial statements are correct, sufficient and 
credible. It also, inter alia, evaluvates the adequacy of internal 
control systems, findings of the internal audits and the annual 
financial statements before submission to the Board. 

c. ALCO: The Asset Liability Management Committee, 
which comprises the Managing Director and senior executives 
including Chief Risk Officer and Chief Operating Officer meets 
on a regular basis and reviews the trading positions, monitors 
interest rate and liquidity gap positions, formulates views on 
interest rates, sets benchmark lending and base rates and 
determines the asset liability management strategy in light of 
the current and expected business environment.

The ALCO seeks to ensure that the company’s capital 
position supports the risks in the business and future growth 
plans through a robust capital management framework. 
This includes a comprehensive internal capital adequacy 
assessment process conducted periodically, which 
determines the adequate level of capitalization necessary to 
meet regulatory norms, current and future business needs, 
including under stress scenarios. 

d. Remuneration & Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee, is a three 
member committee of members of the Board of Fullerton 
India Credit Co. Ltd., and meets at least twice annually. 

•	 The	Remuneration	Committee	provides	guidance	in	
establishing Fullerton India’s overall Human Capital mission 
& strategy. This includes - talent acquisition, employee 
engagement & development and succession planning, 
training programs and talent retention. It lays down guidelines 
for compensation related to all employees of Fullerton India, 
including that of the CEO & MD, which is further ratified by the 
Board of Directors of Fullerton India.

•	 The	Nomination	Committee	reviews	the	structure,	size	
and composition of the Board of Directors, evaluates the 
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board 
and makes recommendations to the Board with regard to 
any adjustments that are deemed necessary. The Committee 
also makes recommendations to the Board on succession 
plans for both executive and non-executive directors and in 
particular for the key roles of Chairman and Chief Executive.
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TECHNOLOGY – INCREASING EFFICIENCIES 
OF A WIDE BUSINESS NETWORK

Technology continues to play a pivotal role at Fullerton 
India and is a key enabler for business growth, launch of 
new products, enhancing customer service and enhancing 
process efficiencies.

During the year, the focus was to fully leverage our state-of-
art technology platform and ensuring that the implemented 
business applications are used widely in enhancing the 
automation of our credit and collections processes.

The Technology solutions services at Fullerton India primarily 
contributed in following distinct areas:

1. Enabling business and supporting daily activities by   
 choosing ‘Fit for purpose’, agile business    
 applications and solutions. 

2. Enabling communication and process management by  
 maintaining a robust and scalable IT infrastructure.

3. Ensuring adherence to policies and procedures for   
 managing and proactively mitigating the risks associated  
 with extensive use of Information Technology. 

The focus during 2011-12 was on consolidation, optimization 
and strategic cost management to ensure that we review 
each and every cost in detail, eliminate wastages and provide 
an efficient, leaner and effective Technology delivery.

Some of the key highlights:

•	 Rule	Engine	Implementation	to	automate	our	credit		 	
 processes and ensure quicker turn-around times and   
 consistency in underwriting

•	 Strategic	Cost	Management	&	Optimization

•	 Initiation	of	application	and	infrastructure	re-alignment	to		
 ensure transition to a customer centric architecture   
 design

•	 Enhancing	the	use	of	newly	launched	Collections	system

While the focus was on ‘running the business’ in most 
optimal ways, in parallel, multiple initiatives were taken to be 
innovative and identify solutions and architecture blocks to 
enable strategic refresh of our technology architecture to align 
it to changing business requirements and have a futuristic, 
comprehensive customer centric IT platform.

The Evolution towards future state customer-centric 
transactional solutions landscape has been initiated during the 
year that would bear significant results to the organization as 
we make progress.

HUMAN CAPITAL:

Ours is a relationship based business and hence to Acquire, 
Engage, Reward and Develop talent is fundamental to the 
success of our business and also our objective to be the most 
respected financial services organization in the industry.  

Our Human Capital strength as on 31 March 2012 
stood at 6362 employees. 

In the last year we launched two key initiatives to develop 
internal talent :

1. The Management Development Academy was 
launched to develop a pipeline of manpower resources for 
senior Branch roles from internal resources. This would also 
help in retaining good talent as it would show a career path to 
the employees.

2. The Management Trainee Program was launched, so 
as to attract fresh talent from the Management Institutions, 
train and develop them to create a pipeline for the Non-
Branch roles. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FULLERTON INDIA: CSR REPORT 2011-12

Corporate Social Responsibility Fullerton India’s 
Unique Livelihood Initiative

Fullerton India follows a unique community development 
initiative that has sustained socio-economic impact on the 
community. Its CSR initiatives are focused on livelihood 
advancement of rural households.

Fullerton India has a widespread reach in rural India through 
its network of over 100 rural finance branches called 
‘Gramshakti’ - which service over 11,000 villages. Fullerton 
India has a unique Partnership Program to help rural 
communities in Livelihood Advancement.

Fullerton Indiaalso believes that such activities must be done 
with the engagement of its employees. All the Livelihood 
Advancement programs and events are organized and run 
completely by Fullerton India staff, who work at, its rural 
Gramshakti branches. 

FULLERTON INDIA’S LIVELIHOOD 
ADVANCEMENT INITIATIVE

Key objectives: 

1.  Promote existing livelihoods through training, know-how  
 and financial inputs so that rural households can improve  
 household incomes and raise their standard of living 

2.  Introduction of new and alternative vocations/ livelihoods  
 that can be adopted by rural households which will help  
 them smoothen income cycles from traditional livelihoods  
 and also help supplement household income through   
 use of existing resources of land and productive   
 manpower time. 

3.  Revive and promote dying rural arts and crafts so that  
 they can be preserved as well as become a primary   
 source of income for those engaged in it. It is also   
 expected to result in reducing migration out of rural areas 

4.  Developing Market Linkages to enable rural households  
 to market their produce directly to the target segments   
 and markets with better packaging and direct linkages   
 with buyers helping them command better prices   
 and margins and enabling them to find and develop a   
 regular market for their produce. 

Partnership Model: The Livelihoods Advancement initiative 
of Fullerton India is expected to be implemented through 
a unique Partnership Model. It brings together Partner 
organizations from Government, NGOs, Socio-Economic 
development organizations, Manufacturing and Trading 
organizations in the Private sector to implement these 
programs. Fullerton India conceptualizes various Livelihood 
Programs with Partner Organizations who have expertise in 
their respective fields to help create new livelihoods as well as 
promote existing livelihoods.

CSR REPORT 2011-12

Over the last financial year 2011-12 it conducted over 500 
events that have positively impacted the lives of over 22000 
households in the rural catchments it serves. 

62 Cattle Care Camps were organized in partnership with 
local veterinary doctors in various locations and carried out 
7133 cattle check-ups. 

It also conducted 349 vocational trainings workshops 
in partnership with local trainers & training institutes in 
various locations that have impacted around over 12,000 
beneficiaries.

108 mini Save the Eye Camps were organized impacting 
over 10,000 beneficiaries in rural locations. Besides 28 
health check camps were organized benefitting over 1500 
households. 

CATTLE  
CARE  
CAMPS

SAVE  
THE EYE  
CAMPS

VOCATIONAL 
TRAINING

HEALTH  
CARE  
CAMPS

N0. of Programs 62

Impact 7133 cattle

N0. of Programs 349

Impact 12993 people

N0. of Programs 28

Impact 1500 households

N0. of Programs 108

Impact 10172 people
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(I) CORPORATE GOvERNANCE PHIlOSOPHy 
AND PRACTICE

Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd (FICCL) believes in 
adopting and adhering to the best recognized corporate 
governance practices and continuously benchmarks itself 
against each such practice. It also understands and respects 
its fiduciary role and responsibility towards its shareholders, 
customers, employees and bankers and strives hard to meet 
their expectations.

The Company believes that best Board practices and 
transparent disclosures are necessary for creating shareholder 
value. The Company has infused the philosophy of corporate 
governance into all its activities. The philosophy on corporate 
governance is an important tool for shareholder protection 
and maximization of their long term values. The cardinal 
principles such as independence, accountability, responsibility, 
transparency, fair and timely disclosures, credibility, etc., serve 
as the means for implementing the philosophy of corporate 
governance in letter and spirit. In addition to compliance with 
regulatory requirements, FICCL endeavors to ensure highest 
standards of ethical and responsible conduct.

The Company continuously focuses on upgrading its 
governance practices and systems to effectively meet the 
new challenges faced by the Company. It is focused on 
raising the standards of corporate governance and adopting 
best systems and procedures. It is also committed to achieve 
and maintain the highest standards of corporate governance 
by timely and accurate disclosure of information regarding the 
performance of the Company. 

Although the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement does not 
apply to FICCL, being an unlisted Company, the Company 
voluntarily follows the spirit of Clause 49 to the extent 
possible.

(II) BOARD Of DIRECTORS  

The Corporate Governance principles of the Company ensure 
that the Board remains informed, independent and provides 
guidance to the Company. Further the Board is fully aware of 
its fiduciary responsibilities and recognizes its responsibilities 
to stakeholders to uphold the highest standards in all matters 
concerning FICCL.

The Directors of the Company possess the highest level of 
personal and professional ethics, integrity and values and are 
committed towards representing the long term interests of its 
stakeholders. 

As a matter of good governance the dates of the Board 
meetings are fixed in advance for the full calendar year to 
enable maximum attendance and participation from all the 
Directors.

1.  COmPOSITION Of BOARD Of DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors is governed by 
the Companies Act, 1956 and Articles of Association of the 
Company. As on date, the Board comprises eight Directors, 
with one Executive Director (Managing Director) and seven 
Non-Executive Directors. Of the seven Non-Executive 
Directors, two are Independent Directors. The Chairman of 
the Board is a Non-Executive Director. 

None of the Non-Executive Directors have any material 
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company 
except to the extent of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive 
Independent Directors for attending Board and Audit 
Committee meetings. 

All the Directors of the Company are eminent persons of 
proven competence and integrity, who exercise objective 
judgment independently. The Board members actively 
participate in all strategic issues which are crucial for the long 
term development of the organization. 

2.  BOARD mEETINGS HElD DURING THE   
 fINANCIAl yEAR 2011-2012

The Company conducted four Board meetings during the 
year under review and at least one meeting was held every 
quarter. The dates on which the Board meetings were held 
are as follows: 

1) 7th June, 2011 

2) 25th August, 2011 

3) 29th November, 2011 and

4) 21st March, 2012 

The Board on a continuous basis reviews the actions and 
decisions taken by it and by the Committees constituted by it. 

The particulars regarding the composition of the Board of 
Directors, attendance of Directors during the financial year 
and at the last Annual General Meeting, the number of other 
Directorships and Committee Memberships/Chairmanships in 
public companies are as follows: 
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Name of the Director Category of 
Directorship

No. of Board 
meetings 

attended out 
of the 4 held 

during the year 

Attendance at 
the last AGM  

14 September, 
2011

No. of Directorships in 
other Public Limited 

Companies as on  
31st March, 2012

No. of Committee 
positions held in other  
other Public Limited 

Companies as| on 31st 
March, 2012

Chairman Member

Mr. Gan Chee Yen, Chairman NED 2 No Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Lee Ah Boon NED 4 Yes 1 Nil 1

Mr. S N Menon NED(I) 2 No 7 Nil 3

Mr. Rajeev Kakar NED 3 No 1 1 1

Mr. Wilson Chia NED 4 No Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Jagdish Khattar NED(I) 3 No 3 Nil 1

Mr. Alan Thompson  
(Appointed on 25th August, 2011)

NED 3 No Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Shantanu Mitra  
(Appointed on 25th August, 2011)

MD(ED) 3 Yes 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Manish Kejriwal  
(Resigned on 20th June, 2011)

NED 1 No N.A. N.A. N.A.

Mr. Francis Andrew Rozario, Chairman
(Resigned on 29th August, 2011)

 NED 2 No N.A. N.A. N.A.

Mr. Thomas P Sodano 
(Resigned on 30th September, 2011)

NED 2 No N.A. N.A. N.A.

Mr. Parvez Vajifdar
(Resigned on 20th March, 2012)

(ED) WTD 3 Yes N.A. N.A. N.A.

Notes:

1.  Category of Directorship:  
MD – Managing Director 
ED – Executive Director  WTD –Wholetime Director 
NED  – Non Executive Director  
NED (I) – Non-Executive Director and Independent

2.   As per the requirement of Clause 49, only 
membership/chairmanship of the Audit 
Committee and Shareholders’/Investors 
Grievance Committee have been considered. 

3.   None of the Directors of the Company holds 
Directorship in more than 15 Public Companies 
or is a member in more than 10 Committees or 
acts as Chairman of more than 5 Committees 
across all companies in which he is a Director.

3. BOARD COmmITTEES 

In order to focus on the critical functions of the Company, the Board has constituted various committees. The details and composition of the 
committees as on date are as follows: 

Sr. No. Audit Committee Risk Oversight Committee Remuneration and Nomination Committee

1. Mr. Lee Ah Boon, Chairman 
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Wilson Chia, Chairman 
(Non-Executive Director) 

Mr. Gan Chee Yen, Chairman
(Non-Executive Director)

2. Mr. Alan Thompson 
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Gan Chee Yen 
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Lee Ah Boon 
(Non-Executive Director)

3. Mr. Rajeev Kakar
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Rajeev Kakar
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Alan Thompson 
(Non-Executive Director)

Notes:  
 
1.  Mr. Rajeev Kakar became a member of the Audit Commitee w.e.f. June 19, 2012. 
2.  Mr. Alan Thompson became a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Commitee w.e.f. June 19, 2012. 
3.  Mr. S N Menon ceased to be a member of the Audit Commitee and Remuneration and Nomination Commitee w.e.f. June 19, 2012.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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i) Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted pursuant 
to Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.The Audit 
Committee meetings were held on the following dates and the 
necessary quorum was present at all the meetings: 

1)  7th June, 2011                         
2)  25th August, 2011  
3)  29th November, 2011 and       
4)  21st March, 2012

The proceedings of the Audit Committee Meetings were 
noted by the Board of Directors at the subsequent Board 
meetings. The particulars of meetings attended by the 
members are set out in the following table: 

Name Position 
held

Meetings during  
FY 2011-12

Meetings  
Held

Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Lee Ah Boon
(Appointed w.e.f.  
9th May, 2011)

Chairman 4 4

Mr. Alan Thompson 
(Appointed w.e.f.  
25th August, 2011)

Member 4 2

Mr. S N Menon* Member 4 2

Mr. Thomas P Sodano, 
(Resigned on  
30th September, 2011)

Member 4 2

 
*Mr. Menon has ceased to be a member w.e.f. June 19, 2012 

All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate 
and eminent persons of proven competence and integrity. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are invited to 
the meeting to bring out the issues that they may have with 
regard to the finance, operations, processes, systems and 
other allied matters.

TERmS Of REfERENCE 

The powers and terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
are comprehensive and include the requirements as set 
out under Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956. The 
Committee is vested with necessary powers as defined in its 
charter to achieve its objectives. 

The Audit Committee inter alia, has reviewed the financial 
statements including Auditors’ Report for the year ended  
31st March, 2012 and has recommended its adoption.

(ii) Risk Oversight Committee

The Company has a comprehensive, well-established 
and detailed risk management framework. The Company 
especially focuses on improving sensitivity to assessment of 
risks and improving methods of computation of risk weights, 
processes and procedures.

The Company has constituted a Risk Oversight Committee 
to identify, review and control key risk areas, across the entire 
organization as per the requirements of Non-Banking Finance 
Companies (NBFC’s) guidelines. It is a dedicated Board-level 
committee that monitors various risk management in the 
Company. The risk assessment and mitigation procedures are 
reviewed by the Board periodically.

The particulars of meetings attended by its members are set 
out in the following table:

Name Position 
held

Meetings during 
FY 2011-12 

Meetings  
Held

Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Wilson Chia 
(Appointed on 25th August, 2011)

Chairman 4 2

Mr. Gan Chee Yen 
(Appointed on 25th August, 2011)

Member 4 2

Mr. Rajeev Kakar Member 4 3

Mr. Francis A. Rozario 
(Resigned on 29th August, 2011)

Member 4 2

Mr. Thomas P Sodano 
(Resigned on 30th September, 2011)

Ex-Chairman 4 2

The Risk Oversight Committee meetings were held on the 
following dates and the necessary quorum was present for all 
the meetings: 

1) 7th June, 2011 
2) 25th August, 2011 
3) 29th November, 2011 and
4) 21st March, 2012 

The proceedings of the Risk Oversight Committee Meetings 
were noted by the Board of Directors at the subsequent 
Board meetings. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to 
the Committee.

TERmS Of REfERENCE 

The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) controls and manages 
the inherent risks relating to the Company’s activities in the 
following categories:

(i) Credit Risk 
(ii) Market Risk/Liquidity Risk 
(iii) Operational Risk 
(iv) Regulatory/Reputational Risk  

Your Company has other management committees such as 
Asset liability Committee (ALCO) formed as per the NBFC’s 
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998, as 
amended from time to time.
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(iii) Remuneration and Nomination Committee 

The Committee meets the requirements of Schedule XIII to 
the Companies Act, 1956 and the Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance issued by the Reserve Bank of India.  
 
The particulars of meetings attended by its members are set 
out in the following table:

Name Position held Meetings during 
FY 2011-12

Meetings  
Held

Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Gan Chee Yen  
(Appointed on 25th August, 2011)

Chairman 4 2

Mr. S. N. Menon* Member 4 2

Mr. Lee Ah Boon Member 4 4

Mr. Francis Rozario  
(Resigned on 29th August, 2011)

Ex – Chairman 4 2

 *Mr. Menon has ceased to be a member w.e.f. June 19, 2012 
 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee meetings were 
held on the following dates and the necessary quorum was 
present for all the meetings:  
 
1) 7th June, 2011            2)  25th August, 2011  
3) 29th November, 2011 and      4) 21st March, 2012 

The Committee meets on need basis. 

4. DIRECTORS & OffICERS lIABIlITy 
INSURANCE COvERAGE 
 
The Company has obtained Directors & Officers Liability 
Insurance coverage from HDFC Ergo General Insurance 
Company Ltd to the extent of Rs. 10 Crores along with Entity 
cover under Employees Practices Liability and any other legal 
action that might be initiated against the Directors.

5. GENERAl BODy mEETINGS

A. Particulars of Annual General meetings (AGm)

The date, time and venue of last three Annual General 
Meetings are given below:

Financial 
Year

AGM 
No.

Date Venue Time

2010-11 16th
14th 
September, 
2011

3rd Floor, No-307, 
Venkat Tower, P.H. 
Road, Maduravoyal, 
Chennai – 600095, 
Tamil Nadu

11.00 a.m.

2009-10 15th
29th 
September, 
2010

Building No.11, 
2nd Flr, Solitaire 
Corporate Park, 
Chakala, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai – 400 093.

11.00 a.m.

2008-09 14th
29th 
September, 
2009

Building No.11, 
2nd Flr, Solitaire 
Corporate Park, 
Chakala, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai – 400 093.

11.00 a.m.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

B. Special resolutions passed at last AGm

Two Special Resolutions were passed:

i.   To ratify the remuneration of the Wholetime Director 
for the FY 2010-11 and to approve increase in his 
remuneration.

ii.   To appoint and approve remuneration of  
 Mr. Shantanu Mitra as the Managing Director of the   
 Company.

C. Particulars of the Extra-Ordinary General 
meetings

An Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the 
financial year 2011-12 on 30th March, 2012. One Special 
Resolution was passed:

i.  To approve alteration of the Object Clause of Memorandum 
of Association

6. WHISTlE BlOWER POlICy 

The Company has developed and established a mechanism 
for the employees for reporting to the management concerns 
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or events 
which are against the interest of the Company or society or,  
are a violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics 
policy.

The Whistle Blower Policy helps to provide for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of employees and also 
provide direct access to the CEO of the Company. An update 
on whistle blower cases and investigation conducted thereon 
is regularly presented to the Audit Committee at its each 
meetings.

7. CODE Of CONDUCT

The Company adopted code of conduct approved by the 
Board of Directors which is binding on employees of the 
Company and the same have been complied. Code of 
conduct is signed off on Annual basis every year.

8. CEO/COO CERTIfICATE:

The CEO and the COO of the Company have certified to 
the Board with regard to the financial statements and other 
matters.  This certificate is included in this Annual Report.
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CERTIfICATION By CHIEf EXECUTIvE OffICER (CEO) AND CHIEf OPERATING OffICER 
(COO)

(Annexure III to the Directors’ Report)

To,

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors 
fullerton India Credit Company limited

We, Shantanu Mitra, Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director and Anand Natarajan, Chief Operating Officer, of Fullerton India 
Credit Company Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

 a.  We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2012 (hereinafter 
referred to as the year) and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

  i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

  ii.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 b.  There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s internal policies 

 c.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and 
have taken requisite steps to rectify these deficiencies.

 d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

  i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year and

  ii.  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

 e.  There have been 84 instances of fraud cases reported by the Company to the Board. The Company has taken appropriate 
legal action against the same. Although the Company is registered as deposit accepting Company, it has not accepted 
deposits from public.

 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Shantanu Mitra Anand Natarajan   
Date:  19th June, 2012 Chief Executive Officer & Chief Operating Officer
 Managing Director
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To 

The members of fullerton India Credit Company limited

1.  We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Fullerton 
India Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’) as at 
March 31, 2012 and also the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 
on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

2.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003 (as amended) (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), 
we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4.  Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to 
above, we report that:

 i.  We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 ii.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books;

 iii.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

 iv.  In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this report comply with the accounting 
standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 
211 of the Act;

 v.  On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors, as on March 31, 2012, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, we report that 
none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 
2012 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act;

 vi.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us the said 
accounts give the information required by the Act, in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India;

  a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2012;

  b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of 
the profit for the year ended on that date; and

  c)  in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 048749
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: June 19, 2012
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
Re: Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’)

(i)  (a)  The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

  (b)  Fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were identified on such verification.  

  (c)  There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed 
assets during the year.

(ii)  The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company 
(‘NBFC’) engaged in the business of giving loans 
and does not maintain any inventory. Therefore the 
provisions of clause 4(ii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(iii)  (a)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms 
or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 4(iii)(a) to (d) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

  (b)  According to information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not taken any loans, 
secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or 
other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 4(iii)(e) to (g) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business, for the 
purchase of fixed assets and for rendering of services. 
The activities of the Company do not involve purchase 
of inventory and the sale of goods. During the course of 
our audit, we have not observed any major weakness 
or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in 
the internal control system of the Company in respect of 
these areas.

(v)  (a)     According to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, we are of the opinion 
that the particulars of contracts or arrangements 
referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956 that need to be entered into the register 
maintained under section 301 have been so 
entered.

  (b)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the transactions made 
in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements 
and exceeding the value of Rupees five lakhs 
have been entered into during the financial year at 
prices which are reasonable having regard to the 
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public.

(vii)  In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size of the Company 
and the nature of its business.

(viii)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the 
Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 
of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of 
section 209 of the Act for the products of the Company.

(ix)  (a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, investor education and protection fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise 
duty, cess and other material statutory dues 
have generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities though there has been a 
slight delay in a few cases; and in case of dues 
of profession tax, these have not generally been 
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities 
though the delays in deposit have not been 
serious. 

  (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor education 
and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, 
customs duty, excise duty cess and other material 
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, 
for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

  (c)  According to the records of the Company, the 
dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and 
cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the statute Nature of the dues Amount (Rs) Period to which the 
amount relates

Due Date Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Chapter V of the  
Finance Act, 1994

Service tax 416,282 Various dates Various dates Commissioner of Central 
Excise (Appeals)

(x)  The Company’s accumulated losses at the end of the 
financial year are more than fifty percent of its net worth.  
The Company has not incurred cash losses in the 
current and immediately preceding financial year. 

(xi)  Based on our audit procedures and as per the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, 
bank or debenture holders. 

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on the documents and records produced 
before us, the Company has not granted loans and 
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of 
shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi 
/ mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions 
of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xiv)  In respect of dealing in investments, in our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, proper records have been maintained of the 
transactions and contracts and timely entries have been 
made therein. The investments have been held by the 
Company, in its own name. 

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

(xvi)  Based on the information and explanation given to us 
by the management, term loans were applied for the 
purpose for which the loans were obtained, though idle/
surplus funds which were not required for immediate 
utilization at relevant time were gainfully invested in 
liquid investments payable on demand.

(xvii)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
investment.

(xviii)  The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
of shares to parties or companies covered in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Act.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, during the period covered by our audit report, 
the Company has issued 5,359 secured debentures 
of Rs.1,000,000 each. The Company has created 
security or charge in respect of secured debentures 
issued. Of the above, in case of 1859 debentures, there 
were delays in completing the procedural formalities 
with Registrar of Companies and as represented 
by the management, the Company has applied for 
condonation of delay in this regard to appropriate 
authorities. The Company has also issued 2,734 
unsecured debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each, on which 
no security or charge is required to be created.

(xx)  The Company has not made any public issues during 
the year.

(xxi)  We have been informed that during the year there were 
instances of cash embezzlements by the employees 
of the Company aggregating Rs. 2,778,181; and loans 
given based on fraudulent misrepresentation by the 
borrowers aggregating Rs. 3,401,453. The services 
of all such employees have been terminated and the 
Company is in the process of taking legal action against 
such employees and the borrowers involved. The 
outstanding balance (net of recovery) aggregating to Rs. 
4,689,822 has been written off.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 048749

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 19, 2012

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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BAlANCE SHEET AS AT mARCH 31, 2012

Notes March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 3  1,70,866  1,70,866 

Reserves and surplus 4  (93,187)  (98,166)

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5  97,646  56,225 

Other long term liabilities 6  1,253  908 

Long-term provisions 7  2,709  4,849 

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 8  1,84,158  1,59,095 

Other current liabilities 9  94,143  89,425 

Short-term provisions 7  632  332 

TOTAL  4,58,220  3,83,534 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

 Tangible assets 10  2,725  4,109 

 Intangible assets 11  2,335  2,339 

 Intangible assets under development  48  88 

Non-current investments 12  8,970  8,970 

Long-term loans and advances 13  2,32,118  2,05,365 

Other non-current assets 14  2,415  65 

Current assets

Current investments 15  27,128  34,355 

Trade receivables 16  7  12 

Cash and bank balances 17  41,591  7,314 

Short-term loans and advances 13  1,32,474  1,13,477 

Other current assets 14  8,409  7,440 

TOTAL  4,58,220  3,83,534 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date      

S. R. BATLIBOI & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of     
Firm Registration number : 301003E Fullerton India Credit Company Limited    
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra    
Partner   Chairman CEO and Managing Director  

Membership No. 048749     
     
  Sd/- Sd/-  
  Anand Natarajan Pankaj Malik    
  Chief Operating Officer General Manager, Finance and
   Company Secretary  

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai    
Date :  June 19, 2012 Date :  June 19, 2012    
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STATEmENT Of  PROfIT AND lOSS fOR THE yEAR ENDED mARCH 31, 2012

Notes  March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs 

 Income

 Revenue from operations 18  90,306  80,023 

 Other income 19  2,883  4,518 

Total revenue (I)  93,189  84,541 

 Expenses

 Employee benefit expense 20  22,530  23,893 

 Other expenses 21  22,549  22,452 

 Depreciation and amortization expense 10&11  2,768  3,102 

 Finance costs 22  33,225  26,795 

 Provisions and write-offs 23  7,198  8,035 

 Total expenses (II)  88,270  84,277 

 Profit before tax (III) =(I)-(II)  4,919  264 

 Tax expenses 

 Reversal of excess provision for previous years  (60) -

 Total tax expense (IV)  (60)  -   

 Profit for the year (III)-(IV)  4,979  264 

 Earnings per equity share (Rs.) 24

Basic (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  0.29  0.02 

Diluted (Computed on the basis of total profit for the year)  0.29  0.02 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date      

S. R. BATLIBOI & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of     
Firm Registration number : 301003E Fullerton India Credit Company Limited    
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra    
Partner   Chairman CEO and Managing Director  

Membership No. 048749     
     
  Sd/- Sd/-  
  Anand Natarajan Pankaj Malik    
  Chief Operating Officer General Manager, Finance and
   Company Secretary  

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai    
Date :  June 19, 2012 Date :  June 19, 2012    
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CASH flOW STATEmENT fOR THE yEAR ENDED mARCH 31, 2012

March 31, 2012 
Rupees ‘Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees ‘Lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before taxation 4,919  264 

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

  Depreciation and amortization  2,768  3,102 

  (Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets  178  81 

  Write off of Fixed Assets & Intangible Assets  114  173 

  (Write back) / provision of impairment on fixed assets and intangible assets  (1)  (249)

  (Profit)/Loss on sale of investments (1,054)  (1,316)

  Interest income on investments  (601)  (1,030)

  Provision for sub standard assets and bad debts written off  7,198  8,035 

  Provision for employees benefits 78 3  

  Employee stock options  -    (5)

  Amortisation of ancillary borrowing cost  789  803 

Operating profit before working capital changes  14,388  9,861 

Movements in working capital :

- (Increase)/ decrease in long term loans and advances  (34,670)  (75,844)

- (Increase)/ decrease in short term loans and advances  (19,947)  39,635 

- (Increase)/ decrease in other current assets  (18)  1,907 

- (Increase)/ decrease in other non current assets  (693)  (807)

- (Increase)/ decrease in trade receivable  5  (10)

 - Increase/ (decrease) in other long term liabilities  (968)  (8,065)

 - Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities  346  (857)

Cash generated from operations  (41,557)  (34,180)

 - Income taxes (paid) / received  (254)  (59)

 - Fringe benefit taxes paid  18  -   

Net cash from operating activities  (A)  (41,793)  (34,239)

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets & intangibles  (1,603)  (2,621)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  32  256 

Purchase of non-current investments  -    (5)

Purchase of investments of subsidiary companies  -    (202)

Purchase of current investments  (1,54,103)  (10,58,990)

Sale / maturity of investments  1,62,384  10,44,509 

Maturity / (investments) in fixed deposit (maturity greater than 3 months) (net)  -    4,900 

Interest received on Investments  629  1,970 

Net cash from investing activities (B)  7,339  (10,183)

C. Cash flow from financing activities ( C ) 

Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including share premium)  -    -   

Maturity / (Investments) in lien marked fixed deposits (placed as security for working  (3,926)  (3,411)

capital limit sanctioned by banks and in connection with asset assignment) (net)

Proceeds from long term borrowings from banks and financials institutions  1,21,012  87,817 

Proceeds from short term borrowings from banks and financials institutions  3,29,715  1,86,444 

Repayment from long term borrowings from banks and financials institutions  (76,226)  (1,35,190)

Repayment from short term borrowings from banks and financials institutions  (3,04,647)  (1,11,223)

Payment of ancillary borrowing cost  (1,049)  (510)

Net cash used in financing activities (C )  64,879  23,927 
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March 31, 2012 
Rupees ‘Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees ‘Lacs

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A)+(B)+(C)  30,425  (20,495)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  (7,943)  12,552 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
(refer note 28 )

 22,482  (7,943)

 

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at

Cash and cheques on hand  272  243 

With banks   -  on current account (net of book overdraft)  22,210  (8,186)

                    -  on deposit account  -    -   

 22,482  (7,943)

CASH flOW STATEmENT fOR THE yEAR ENDED  mARCH 31, 2012

As per our report of even date      

S. R. BATLIBOI & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of     
Firm Registration number : 301003E Fullerton India Credit Company Limited    
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/-
per Viren H. Mehta Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra    
Partner   Chairman CEO and Managing Director  

Membership No. 048749     
     
  Sd/- Sd/-  
  Anand Natarajan Pankaj Malik    
  Chief Operating Officer General Manager, Finance and
   Company Secretary  

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai    
Date :  June 19, 2012 Date :  June 19, 2012    
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. CORPORATE INfORmATION

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a 
public company domiciled in India and incorporated under 
the provision of Companies Act, 1956.The Company is a non 
banking financial company (‘NBFC’) registered with Reserve 
Bank of India (‘RBI’). The Company provides commercial, 
personal, automobile and other loans to customers such 
as individuals, professionals, partnership firms, sole 
proprietorship and small and medium companies. 

2. BASIS Of PREPARATION

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these 
financial statements to comply in all material respects with the 
Accounting Standards notified by Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), the relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the provisions of the RBI as 
applicable to a NBFC. The financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention except interest on loans where installments are 
overdue for more than 90 days and penal charges, which 
are recognized on realization basis. The accounting policies 
adopted by the Company are consistent with those of the 
previous year except for the change in accounting policy 
explained below. 

 2.1 Statement of Significant Accounting   
  Policies

 (a) Change in accounting policy

  Presentation and disclosure of financial   
  statements

   During the year ended March 31, 2012, the revised 
Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 
1956, has become applicable to the Company, 
for preparation and presentation of its financial 
statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI 
does not impact recognition and measurement 
principles followed for preparation of financial 

NOTES TO fINANCIAl STATEmENTS fOR THE yEAR ENDED mARCH 31, 2012

(Amount in Rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

statements. However, it has impact on presentation 
and disclosure made in the financial statements. 
The Company has also reclassified the previous 
year figures in accordance with the requirements 
applicable in the current year.

 (b) Use of estimates 

   The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires the management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of 
reporting period. Although these estimates are based 
on management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities in future periods.

 (c) Tangible fixed assets 

   Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost 
comprises purchase price and directly attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for 
the intended use.

 (d) Intangible assets 

   Costs relating to acquisition and development of 
computer software are capitalized in accordance 
with the AS 26 ‘Intangible Assets’ issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) 
and are amortised using the straight line method over 
a period of five years, which is the management’s 
estimate of its useful life. 

 (e) Depreciation

   Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided 
using the Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) as per 
the useful lives of the assets estimated by the 
management, or at the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, whichever 
is higher.

Rate (SLM) adopted  
by the Company

Schedule XIV  
Rates (SLM)

Building 2.00 % 1.63 %

Computers & Accessories 25 % & 33.33% 16.21 %

Furniture & Fixture 16.67 % 6.33 %

Office Equipments 16.67 % & 50% 4.75 %

Vehicles 16.67% 9.50 %
 
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease subject to a maximum lease period of 66 months.

  Fixed assets having an original cost upto Rs. 5,000 individually are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.
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 (f) Impairment 

   The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date to assess any indication 
of impairment, based on internal/external factors. 
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount.  The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the asset. 

  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the  
  revised carrying amount of the asset over its   
  remaining useful life.

 (g) Investments

   Investments, which are readily realizable and 
intended to be held for not more than one year 
from the date on which such investments are 
made, are classified as current investments. All 
other investments are classified as long-term 
investments. Current investments are carried in 
the financial statements at lower of cost and fair 
value determined on an individual investment basis 
except for investments in the units of mutual funds 
in the nature of current investments that have 
been valued at the net asset value declared by the 
mutual fund in respect of each particular scheme, 
in accordance with the NBFC directions. Long-term 
investments are carried at cost. However, provision 
for diminution in value is made to recognise a 
decline other than temporary in the value of the 
investments. On disposal of an investment the 
difference between carrying amount and net 
disposal proceeds are charged or credited to the 
statement of profit and loss.

 (h) Provisioning / write-off of Assets

   Loans including assignment loan receivables are 
written off / provided for, as per management 
estimates, subject to the minimum provision 
required as per Non – Banking Financial (Deposit 
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential 
Norms (Reserve Bank of India) Directions, 2007, as 
amended from time to time.

  Off-balance sheet items: 

   Provision for losses under assignment arrangements 
is made as higher of the incurred loss and provision 
as per management estimate subject to the credit 
enhancement provided to the respective assignee 
bank or financial institution.

 (i) leases

   Leases where the lessor effectively retains, 
substantially, all the risks and benefits of ownership 
of the leased term, are classified as operating 
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as 

NOTES

an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

 (j) Revenue recognition

   Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. 

  Interest income on loans given is recognised under  
  the internal rate of return method. 

   Such interest, where installments are overdue 
for more than 90 days, is recognised only when 
actually realised. Any such income, recognised 
and remaining unrealised after the installments 
have become overdue for more than 90 days, is 
reversed.

   Interest income on deposits with banks is 
recognised on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate.

   On sale of receivables under asset assignment 
arrangement, the profit arising on account of sale is 
recognized over the life of the receivables assigned 
on an accrual basis and loss, if any, arising on 
account of sale is accounted immediately.

  Loan processing charges are recognised over the  
  term of the loan in proportion to the interest accrued  
  during the year.

   Additional penal charges such as bounce charges, 
foreclosure charges etc. are recognised on 
realization, given the uncertainty of realization.

  Dividend income is recognised on the date when  
  the Company’s right to receive is established by the  
  reporting date.

 (k) foreign currency transactions

  i)    Initial recognition

     Foreign currency transactions are recorded 
in the reporting currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount, the exchange rate 
between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

  ii)   Conversion

   Foreign currency monetary items are   
   retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing  
   at the reporting date.

    Non-monetary items, which are measured 
in terms of historical cost denominated in 
a foreign currency, are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

  iii)  Exchange differences

    Exchange differences arising on the settlement 
of monetary items or on the restatement of the 
Company’s monetary items at rates different 
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from those at which they were initially recorded 
during the year, or reported in the previous 
financial statements, are recognized as income 
or as expense in the year in which they arise.

 (l) Retirement and Other Employee benefits

  i)  Short Term Employee Benefits

    All short term employee benefits are accounted 
on undiscounted basis during the accounting 
period based on services rendered by 
employees.

  ii) Defined Contribution Plans

   a)  The contributions as specified by law 
are made to the Regional Provident 
Fund Commissioner and charged to the 
statement of profit and loss of the year 
when the contribution to the respective 
fund is due. There are no other obligations 
other than contribution payable to the 
provident fund.

   b)    Superannuation is provided for on accrual  
    basis, in accordance with the Company’s  
    policy.

  iii) Defined Benefit Plans

     Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of 
an actuarial valuation made on Projected Unit 
Credit method at the end of each financial year.

  iv) Other Benefits

    Sales incentives are provided for on accrual 
basis, in accordance with the Company’s 
policy. Employer’s contribution for sales 
incentives is provided for on the basis of  
an actuarial valuation made at the end of the 
financial year. Actuarial gains are immediately 
taken to the statement of profit and loss and 
are not deferred.

 (m) Income taxes

   Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current income tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 
enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current 
year timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income originating during the current 
year and reversal of timing differences of earlier 
years.

   Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that there is 

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred 
tax assets can be realised. In situations where the 
Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are 
recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported 
by convincing evidence that they can be realised 
against future taxable profits. 

   At each balance sheet date, the Company re-
assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets.  It 
recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to 
the extent that it has become reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

 (n) Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable 
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. 

   For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

 (o) Provisions & contingencies

   A provision is recognised when an enterprise has 
a present obligation as a result of past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate 
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to 
its present value and are determined based on 
best estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimates.

   A disclosure for contingent liability is made when 
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of 
resources or it cannot be reliably estimated. When 
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor 
disclosed.

 (p) Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash 
flow statement comprise cash at bank and cash 
in hand and short term investments with original 
maturity of three months or less.
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 (q) Share based payments 

   In case of stock option plan and stock appreciation rights, measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment 
plan is done in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAI. The 
Company measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the fair value method. Compensation expense is 
amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

 (r) Borrowing costs

   Ancillary borrowing costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings is amortised over the tenure of the respective 
borrowings. 

3. SHARE CAPITAl

Particulars March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

 Authorised Shares     

  2,500,000,000 ( March 31, 2011: 2,500,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each                250,000                250,000 

                 250,000                250,000 

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares  

  1,708,661,357 ( March 31, 2011: 1,708,661,357) equity shares of Rs.10 each                170,866                170,866 

                 170,866                170,866 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares 
 

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 

 No. of shares  Rupees Lacs  No. of shares  Rupees Lacs 

 At the beginning of the year     1,708,661,357            170,866     1,708,661,357              170,866 

 Issued during the year                      -                      -                       -                        -   

 Outstanding at the end of year     1,708,661,357            170,866     1,708,661,357              170,866 

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share.

Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
Dividend is declared and paid in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive  remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by holding /ultimate holding Company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/associates 
are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore, the holding Company and its nominees   162,341                162,341 

1,623,405,000 ( March 31, 2011: 1,623,405,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each  fully paid)

Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore, the ultimate holding Company

8,52,56,357 ( March 31, 2011: 8,52,56,357) equity shares of Rs.10 each  fully paid)                    8,526                   8,526

NOTES
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Shares issued for consideration other than cash 

Particulars March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

Equity shares of Rs 10 each allotted to Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd., the holding Company  
 of erstwhile Fullerton Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., for consideration other than cash, pursuant to the scheme of 
Amalgamation approved by the Honorable High Court, Bombay. 85,256,357 85,256,357

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company 

Equity Shares 
 

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 

 No. of shares 
% holding in  

the class  No. of shares 
% holding in 

 the class

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid

Angelica investments Pte. Ltd, Singapore, the holding 
Company and its nominees     1,623,405,000 95.01%      1,623,405,000 95.01%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, refer note 32 (a).

4. RESERvES AND SURPlUS 

Particulars March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

 General Reserve 96 96 

 Capital Reserve 349 349 

 Securities Premium Account 696 696 

 Reserve Fund under Section 45 - IC of the RBI Act, 1934    

  Balance as per the last financial statements  151 98 

 Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss 996 53 

 Closing Balance  1,147 151 

 Employee stock options outstanding     

 Gross employee stock compensation for options granted in earlier years 1 6 

 Add: Gross compensation for options granted during the year -   -   

 Less: Gross compensation for options lapsed/forfeited during the year -   (5)

 Less : Deferred employee stock compensation -   -   

 Closing Balance  1 1 

 (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss    

  Balance as per the last financial statements  (99,459) (99,670)

  Add:  Profit for the  year 4,979 264 

  Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve [@ 20% of profit after tax as required by section 45-IC of 
  Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934] 996 53 

 Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss (95,476) (99,459)

 Total reserves and surplus (93,187) (98,166)
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5. lONG TERm BORROWINGS

Particulars  Non Current portion  Current maturities 

March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

 Term Loans        

 Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)*                   44,716                   33,225                   38,623                   18,780 

 Indian rupee loan from banks (unsecured)                          -                     11,000                   11,000                          -   

 Debentures        

 Debentures (secured)*                   38,590                          -                     15,000                     8,500 

 Debentures (unsecured)                   14,340                   12,000                     3,000                   36,290 

 Total                  97,646                  56,225                  67,623                  63,570 

 The above amount includes        

 Secured Borrowing                    83,306                   33,225                   53,623                   27,280 

 Unsecured Borrowing                    14,340                   23,000                   14,000                   36,290 

 Less: Amount disclosed under the head “other 
current liabilities” (note 9)                          -                            -                     67,623                   63,570 

 Total                  97,646                  56,225                          -                            -   

*Indian rupee loan from banks and debentures are secured by first pari passu charge over all book debts

Terms of repayment of borrowings as on march 31, 2012 

Original maturity of loan
Rate of 
interest

Due within 1 year Due 1 to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 Years  

 No. of 
installments 

 Amount 
 No. of 

installments 
 Amount 

 No. of 
installments 

 Amount  Total 

Monthly repayment schedule            

366-730 11% - 12% 3 7,500 - - - - 7,500

731-1095 12% - 14% 5 417 - - - - 417

Quarterly repayment schedule

731-1095 12% - 14% 20 8,227 18 16,477 12 12,614 37,318

1096-1460 12% - 14% 3 2,479 4 3,750 2 1,875 8,104

Bullet repayment schedule

366-730 9.5% - 11% 3 20,000 - - - - 20,000

731-1095
9.5% - 11% 1 11,000 - - - - 11,000

12% - 14% - - - 1 10,000 10,000

 Total 35 49,623 22 20,227 15 24,489 94,339

NOTES
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Terms of repayment of borrowings as on march 31, 2011

Original maturity of loan
Rate of 
interest

Due within 1 year Due 1 to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 Years  

 No. of 
installments 

 Amount 
 No. of 

installments 
 Amount 

 No. of 
installments 

 Amount  Total 

Monthly repayment schedule            

366-730 11% - 12% 3 7,500 - - 7,500

731-1095 12% - 14% 20 1,446 5 417 - - 1,863

Quarterly repayment schedule

731-1095 12% - 14% 33 13,722 16 4,123 - - 17,845

1096-1460 12% - 14% 8 3,611 3 1,186 - - 4,797

Bullet repayment schedule                        

366-730 9.5% - 11% - -  3
            
20,000 

-  -
              

20,000 

731-1095 9.5% - 11% - -  1
            
11,000 

-  -
              

11,000 

 Total   61 18,780 31 44,225 - - 63,005

Terms of repayment of NCDs as on march 31, 2012

Original maturity of loan  
Rate of 
interest 

 
Annualised 

Yield

Due within  
1 year 

Amount 

Due 1 to 2 
Years 

Amount 

Due 2 to 3 
Years 

Amount 
 

 Total 

Issued at par and redeemable at par            

366-730

9.5% - 11%   - 1,300 - 1,300

11% - 12%   18,000 - - 18,000

731-1095

9.5% - 11%   - 8,500 - 8,500

11% - 12%   - - 2,500 2,500

1096-1460

9.5% - 11%   - 500 - 500

11% - 12%   - - 35,000 35,000

Issued at par and redeemable at premium

366-730 Zero Coupon  11% to 12% - 1,540 - 1,540

Issued at discount and redeemable at par - - - -

731-1095 Zero Coupon  11% to 12% - - 3,590 3,590

  Total   18,000 11,840 41,090 70,930

Terms of repayment of NCDs as on march 31, 2011

Original maturity of loan
Rate of 
interest

Annualised 
Yield

Due within 
1 year

 Amount 

Due 1 to 2 
Years

 Amount 

Due 2 to 3 
Years

 Amount 
 

 Total 

Issued at par and redeemable at par            

366-730
7% - 9.5%   39,600  -   -  39,600

11% - 12%    -   3,000 -  3,000

731-1095 7% - 9.5%    -    -   8,500 8,500

1096-1460 9.5% - 11%    -    -   500 500

Issued at par and redeemable at premium    

366-730  Zero Coupon  8%-9% 5,190  -    -   5,190

 Total   44,790 3,000 9,000 56,790
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6. OTHER lONG TERm lIABIlITIES

Particulars 
 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Interest accrued but not due on debentures                         45                         -   

 Unamortized income    

 Unamortized loan processing fees                         278                       890 

 Unamortized income on asset assignment                         922                         -   

 Others                           8                         17 

 Total                     1,253                       908 

7. PROvISIONS

Particulars 
 
 

 Long Term  Short Term 

 March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Provision for employee benefits      

  Provision for gratuity ( refer note 33)                            -                            -                           81                           6 

  Provision for superannuation                           -                            -                             9                           6 

 Other provisions        

  Provision against standard assets                         662                        576                        367                        320 

  Provision against sub-standard assets                         948                     4,273                          -                            -   

  Provision against assigned loans                     1,099                          -                          175                          -   

 Total                    2,709                    4,849                       632                       332 

8. SHORT TERm BORROWING 

Particulars 
 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

Loan repayable on demand    

Cash credit from banks (secured)* 31,016 1,501

Cash credit from banks (unsecured) 2,498 -

Other loans and advances

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)* 17,000 21,273

Indian rupee loan  from banks (unsecured) - 20,000

Debentures (unsecured) 10,000 -

1000 ( March 31, 2011: Nil) 11.48% unsecured non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each,  
redeemable at par at the end of 365 days from the date of allotment.

Commercial paper (unsecured) 123,644 116,321

Total 184,158 159,095

The above amount includes    

 Secured borrowings                   48,016                   22,774 

 Unsecured borrowings                  136,142                  136,321 

 Total                 184,158                159,095 

*Cash Credit from banks  and Indian rupee loan from bank is secured by first pari passu charge over all book debts.

NOTES
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9. OTHER CURRENT lIABIlITIES

Particulars 
 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Other liabilities    

 Current maturities of long term borrowings (note 5)                   67,623                   63,570 

 Security deposits                        442                     2,739 

 Bank balances (Book overdraft)                   11,078                     9,446 

 Interest accrued but not due    

 On debentures                     3,361                     3,775 

 On others                         50                        149 

 Undisputed statutory dues                        555                        493 

Expenses and other payable ((including   acceptances) ( refer note 38 for details of dues to Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise )                     2,534                     2,787 

 Employees’ payable                     3,839                     4,402 

 Payable towards asset assignment                      3,032                        753 

 Others                     1,157                        801 

 Unamortized income    

  Unamortized loan processing fees                          97                        511 

  Unamortized income on asset assignment                         375                          -   

 Total                  94,143                  89,425 
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10 . TANGIBlE ASSETS

Particulars
 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Rupees Lacs 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Rupees Lacs 

 Computers & 
Accessories 

 Rupees Lacs 

 Leasehold 
Improvements 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Vehicles 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Land & 
Building 

 Rupees Lacs 
 Total 

 Rupees Lacs 
Cost

At April 1, 2010 2,880 3,679 5,403 5,114 90 6 17,172

Addition 290 456 215 693 - - 1,654

Disposals 836 1,396 1,446 2,198 54 - 5,930

As at March 31, 2011 2,334 2,739 4,172 3,609 36 6 12,896

Addition 185 80 277 136 42 - 720

Disposals 329 348 534 404 - - 1,615

As at March 31, 2012 2,190 2,471 3,915 3,341 78 6 12,001

Depreciation -

At April 1,2010 1,520 1,846 3,951 2,797 25 - 10,139

Charge for the year 382 435 773 762 10 - 2,362

Disposals 456 717 1,111 1,452 22 - 3,758

At March 31, 2011 1,446 1,564 3,613 2,107 13 - 8,743

Charge for the year 386 394 419 661 11 - 1,871

Disposals 257 262 524 331 - - 1,374

At March 31, 2012 1,575 1,696 3,508 2,437 24 - 9,240

Impairment                                       
-   

At April 1, 2010 371 578 365 650 - - 1,964

Charge for the year 363 563 362 632 - - 1,920

At March 31, 2011 8 15 3 18 - - 44

Additions - 2 - - - - 2

Charge for the year 2 2 1 5 - - 10

At March 31, 2012 6 15 2 13 - - 36

Net Block

At March 31, 2011 880 1,160 556 1,484 23 6 4,109

At March 31, 2012 609 760 405 891 54 6 2,725

The Company does not have any other leasehold assets except as disclosed above. All assets have been recognized at cost 

NOTES
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11. INTANGIBlE ASSETS

Particulars  Computer  
Software 

Total

   Rupees Lacs Rupees Lacs

Gross block

At April 1, 2010 4,241 4,241

Additions 1,027 1,027

At March 31, 2011 5,268 5,268

Purchase 983 983

Disposals 1,494 1,494

At March 31, 2012 4,757 4,757

Amortisation

At April 1, 2010 2,189 2,189

Charge for the year 740 740

At March 31, 2011 2,929 2,929

Charge for the year 897 897

Deductions 1,404 1,404

At March 31, 2012 2,422 2,422

Impairment

At April 1, 2010 2 2

Charge for the year 2 2

At March 31, 2011 - -

At March 31, 2012 - -

Net block -

At March 31, 2011 2,339 2,339

At March 31, 2012 2,335 2,335

12. NON -CURRENT INvESTmENTS

Particulars 
 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 Non Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

 Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)    

 a) Associates    

 87,627,813 ( March 31, 2011: 87,627,813) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Fullerton                 8,763                    8,763 

 Securities & Wealth Advisors Limited    

 b) Wholly owned subsidiaries    

 2,000,000 ( March 31, 2011: 2,000,000) equity shares of Rs.  10 each fully paid-up in Fullerton India                    200                       200 

      Home Finance Company Limited

      23,575 ( March 31, 2011: 23,575) equity shares of Rs. 10   each fully paid-up in  Fullerton India                       2                           2 

 Foundation For Social & Economic Development  

 c) Others    

 50,000 (March 31, 2011: 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in  Alpha Micro Finance                       5                           5 

 Consultants Private Limited    

 Total 8,970 8,970

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 8,970 8,970
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13. lOANS AND ADvANCES

Particulars 
 
 

 Non-current  Current 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

A. Portfolio loans        

 a. Secured, considered good       

  Loans  67,596 57,816 39,354 31,237

     b. Secured, considered doubtful 

  Loans  4,514 4,718 - -

 c. Unsecured, considered good 

        Assignment loan receivables - - 390 7,285

        Loans 151,972 123,271 86,452 72,439

    d. Unsecured, considered doubtful 

  Assignment loan receivables - 5,870 - -

  Loans 3,480 8,342 - -

 Sub-Total                                                    (A) 227,562 200,017 126,197 110,961

 B. Security deposits 

 Unsecured, considered good 1,073 1,333 222 230

 Unsecured, considered doubtful 86 - - -

 Provision for doubtful security deposit (86) - - -

Sub-Total                                                    (B) 1,073 1,333 222 230

C.  Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received 

 Unsecured, considered good 2,010 2,572 561 473

Sub-Total                                                    (C) 2,010 2,572 561 473

D. Other loans and advances 

 Retained interest receivable on asset assignment  1,254 - 1,395 -

 Loans placed as collateral towards asset assignment - - 1,369 -

 Advance Income Tax (net of provision for tax ) 218 1,365 1,443 -

 Prepaid expenses 1 78 1,179 1,527

 Loans and advances to employees - - 10 10

 Others - - 87 205

Sub-Total                                                    (D) 1,473 1,443 5,484 1,742

E. Capital advances 

 Unsecured, considered good - - 11 71

Sub-Total                                                    (E) - - 11 71

Total (A+B+C+D+E) 232,118 205,365 132,474 113,477

NOTES
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14. OTHER ASSETS

Particulars 
 

 Non Current  Current 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs  

Non Current bank balances ( Note 16) 1,706  -  -  -

Repossessed assets -  -  512  512

Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowings  335  65  310  320

 Unamortised discount on non convertible debenture 356  -  332  -

Interest accrued and due        

 On secured  loans  -  -  182  162

 On unsecured loans  -  -  682  816

 Interest Accrued but not due        

 On deposits placed with banks  18  -  85  131 

 On government securities  -  -  18  -

 On secured assignment loan receivables  -  -  -  4 

 On secured loans  -  -  1,329  1,185 

 On unsecured assignment loan receivables  -  -  3  42 

 On unsecured loans  -  -  4,956  4,268 

 Total  2,415  65  8,409  7,440

15. CURRENT INvESTmENTS

Particulars 
 

 March 31, 2012 
 Rupees Lacs 

 March 31, 2011 
 Rupees Lacs 

Current investments ( valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)    

A) Quoted: Government securities    

500,000 (FV: Rs.100) ( March 31, 2011: Nil) 8.79 % 2021 Government of India                        507                          -   

B) Unquoted: Certificate of deposits    

2,500 (March 31, 2011: Nil ) units of Rs 100,000 each of State Bank of Patiala                     2,452                          -   

5,000 (March 31, 2011: Nil ) units of Rs 100,000 each  of Punjab National Bank                     4,685                          -   

15,000 (March 31, 2011: Nil ) units of Rs 100,000 each  of Canara Bank                   14,597                          -   

5,000 (March 31, 2011: Nil ) units of Rs 100,000 each of Uco Bank                     4,887                          -   

Nil (March 31, 2011: 2,500) units of Rs 100,000 each of Bank Of India                          -                       2,413 

Nil (March 31, 2011: 5,000) units of Rs 100,000 each of State Bank of Patiala                          -                       4,917 

Nil (March 31, 2011: 5,000) units of Rs 100,000 each of State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur                          -                       4,873 

Nil (March 31, 2011: 5,000) units of Rs 100,000 each of Uco Bank                          -                       4,891 

Nil (March 31, 2011: 5,000) units of Rs 100,000 each of Corporation Bank                          -                       4,887 

C) Unquoted:  Commercial papers                          -                       9,873 

Nil (March 31, 2011: 2,000 ) units of Rs 500,000 each of Aircel ltd    

D) Unquoted: Mutual funds (At net asset value)                          -                       2,501 

Nil ( March 31, 2011: 250,064,871) units of Rs. 10 each in SBI Mutual Fund    

 Total                  27,128                  34,355 

Aggregate Amount of quoted investment (Market value Rs 526 )                        507                          -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments                   26,621                   34,355 
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16. TRADE RECEIvABlE 

Particulars 
 
 

 Non Current  Current 

March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Other receivable         

    Unsecured, considered good                          -                            -                             7                         12 

 Total                          -                            -                             7                         12 

17. CASH AND BANk BAlANCES

Particulars 
 
 

 Non Current  Current 

March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Cash and cash equivalents:        

Balances with  Banks        

On Current accounts                          -                            -                     33,288                     1,260 

Cash on hand                          -                            -                          272                        243 

Other bank balances        

Fixed Deposit*                     1,706                          -                       8,031                     5,811 

                     1,706                          -                    41,591                    7,314 

Less: amount disclosed under non current assets (note 14)                     (1,706)                          -                            -                            -   

Total                          -                            -                    41,591                    7,314 

* Pledged against working capital limit sanctioned by banks and pledged as cash collateral in connection with asset assignment

18. REvENUE fROm OPERATIONS

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended
March 31, 2011

Rupees Lacs

 Interest income    

 Interest income on loans                          76,952                      70,914 

 Income from asset assignment                              543                            79 

 Other operating revenue    

 Processing charges                           4,668                        5,108 

 Ancillary income from operations                           8,143                        3,922 

 Total                        90,306                     80,023 

19. OTHER INCOmE 

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

 Interest on bank deposits                              511                          623 

 Interest on investments                              947                        2,215 

 Profit on sale of investments                           1,054                        1,322 

 Reversal of provision no longer required -                           232 

 Miscellaneous income                              371                          126 

Total 2,883 4,518

NOTES
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20.  EmPlOyEE BENEfIT EXPENSE

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

 Salaries, bonus and allowances                          21,030                      22,443 

 Contribution to provident and other funds                           1,037                        1,033 

 Gratuity expense (refer note 33)                                74                            32 

 Employee stock option expenditure                                -                              (5)

 Staff welfare expenses                              389                          390 

 Total                        22,530                     23,893 

21. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

 Printing and stationery                              504                          701 

 Rent                           2,016                        2,331 

 Rates and taxes                              698                          563 

 Insurance                              916                        1,042 

 Advertisement and business promotion expenses                              248                          383 

 Commission and brokerage                              791                          689 

 Legal and professional charges                          11,696                      11,237 

 Courier charges                              215                          152 

 Repairs and maintenance    

    - Office premises                              991                        1,016 

    - Others                              400                          371 

 Directors’ sitting fees                                 1                              3 

 Travelling expenses                           1,577                        1,613 

 Telecommunication expenses                              685                          952 

 Payment to auditor (refer details below)                                37                            35 

 Electricity charges                              633                          549 

 Security charges                                74                          125 

 Recruitment expenses                                82                            44 

 Training expenses                              136                          134 

 Fees and subscription                                33                            96 

 Software charges                                16                            89 

 Corporate social responsibility                                 4                            20 

 Miscellaneous expenses                              505                          302 

 Impairment on fixed assets and intangible assets                                (1)                         (249)

 Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets                              114                          173 

 Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)                              178                            81 

 Total                        22,549                     22,452 

 Payment to auditor    

 As auditor:    

  Audit fee                                25                            23 

  Tax audit fee                                 5                              5 
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Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

Limited review                                 4                              4 

In other capacity:    

Other services (certification fees)                                 2                              2 

Reimbursement of expenses                                 1                              1 

22. fINANCE COSTS

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

Interest    

On loans from banks                          11,125                        9,603 

On loans from financial institutions                                -                            716 

On debentures                           4,642                        5,303 

On others                                78                          265 

Premium/Discount on redemption of   debentures                              164                        3,540 

Discount on commercial papers                          16,102                        6,335 

Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs                              789                          803 

Bank charges                              325                          230 

Total                        33,225                     26,795 

23. PROvISIONS AND WRITE OffS

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

Bad debts written off during the year (net of recoveries) 10,264 29,906 

Provision against assigned loans 126                            -   

Provision against standard assets 133 896 

Provision against sub standard assets (3,325) (22,767)

Total 7,198 8,035 

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars
 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Rupees Lacs 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

 Rupees Lacs 

Profit after Tax                          4,979                          264 

Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic earnings  per share               1,708,661,357            1,708,661,357 

Add: Weighted average number of equity shares for Nil  consideration arising on grant of equity stock 
options under Employee Stock Option Plan

                             687                      53,237 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS               1,708,662,044            1,708,714,594 

Earnings per Share :    

 Basic (Rs.)                             0.29                         0.02 

 Diluted (Rs.)                             0.29                         0.02 

[Nominal value of shares Rs. 10 each (Previous Year : Rs. 10)]    

21. OTHER EXPENSES Contd....

NOTES
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25.     SEGmENT INfORmATION

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. lending to customers which have similar risks and returns for the purpose of AS - 17 
on ‘Segment Reporting’ issued by the ICAI. The Company does not have any reportable geographical segment.

26.     ASSIGNmENT Of lOANS

During the year the Company has transferred loans through direct assignment. The information on direct assignment activity of the Company as 
an originator is given below:

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2012 

Rupees Lacs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011 

Rupees Lacs

Total number of loans assigned 1,83,305 67,783

Total book value of the loans assigned 42,365 5,551

Sale consideration received for the loan asset assigned 42,365 5,551

Income from asset assignment recognised in the statement of profit and loss 464 79

As at March 31,  
2012

As at March 31,  
2011

Credit enhancements provided and outstanding:

Interest subordination 179 79

Cash Collateral 7,829 1,660

27.     RElATED PARTy DISClOSURE

List and details of related parties 

Holding Companies Angelica Investments Pte. Ltd., Singapore (‘Angelica’)

  Fullerton Financials Holdings Pte. Ltd. (Holding Company of Angelica)

Fellow Subsidiary Fullerton Securities & Wealth Advisors Ltd.

Subsidiary Fullerton India Foundation for Social & Economic Development 
(Section 25 Company)

  Fullerton India Home Finance Company Ltd.

Key Management Personnel 1. Mr. Shantanu Mitra , Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director

 (Deputy CEO from May 9, 2011 to July 31, 2011

 CEO w.e.f. August 1, 2011 to August 24, 2011 

 CEO and MD from August 25, 2011 onwards)     

 
2) Mr. Ruben De La Mora, Chief Executive Officer & President 
 ( Up to July 31, 2011)

3) Mr. Parvez Vajifdar, Whole Time Director 
 (Up to March 20, 2012 )
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28.     lEASES: 

Premises are obtained on operating lease. The lease term ranges from 11 months to 134 months and are renewable / cancellable at the 
option of the Company. Certain lease agreements contain clause for escalation of lease payments. There are no restrictions imposed by lease 
arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during the year are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

  Rupees Lacs Rupees Lacs

Operating lease payments recognized during the year 1,968 2,331

Minimum Lease Obligations    

Not later than one year 2,130 2,141

Later than one year but not later than five years                              6,048                          7,455 

Later than five years                                   77                             394 

29. CASH AND CASH EqUIvAlENTS

Particulars  March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011 
Rupees Lacs

Cash and Bank Balance (as per note “17 ”) 41,591 7,314

Bank Balance (Book Overdraft) (as per note “ 9”) (11,078) (9,446)

Less: Lien marked Fixed Deposits (8,031) (5,811)

Less: Fixed Deposits having original maturity period greater than  three months - -

Balance considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Statement 22,482 (7,943)

30. CONTINGENT lIABIlITy AND COmmITmENTS

The details of contingent liabilities are disclosed in the table below

Description of the Liability March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Credit enhancement provided by the Company for the loans under  
assignment arrangements (including cash collaterals and interest subordination) 8,008 1,739

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at March 31, 2012 is Rs 64.53 Lacs  
(March 31, 2011: Rs. 102.63 Lacs).

31. EXPENDITURE IN fOREIGN CURRENCy

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis) For the year ended 
March 31, 2012 

Rupees Lacs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011 

Rupees Lacs

Travelling 6 4

Professional Fees 47 85

Total 53 89

CIF value of Imports

Capital Goods 46 207
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32. EmPlOyEE SHARE BASED PAymENTS

a) Employee Stock Options

The Company has provided share-based payment plan to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the following plans were in 
operation:

Particulars Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III

Date of grant June 23, 2006 January 21, 2007 October 18, 2007

Date of Board Approval April 21, 2006 April 21, 2006 April 21, 2006

Date of Shareholders’ approval June 07, 2006 June 07, 2006 June 07, 2006

Number of options granted 5,715,541 6,785,538 6,749,872

Method of Settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity Equity Equity

Graded Vesting Period

December 31, 2009 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted

December 31, 2010 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted

December 31, 2011 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted 1/6th of options granted

December 31, 2015 Balance options Balance options Balance options

Exercisable upto December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018 

Vesting Conditions On achievement of pre-determined targets which are based on the financial targets committed in 
the approved Business Plan of the Company.

The details of Tranche I have been summarized below:

  Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Number of Shares
Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.) Number of Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -  2,345,066 10

Granted during the year - - - -

Lapsed during the year - - 2,345,066 -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year - -  - 10

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) - - - -

Weighted average fair value of options granted - NA - 0.21

 
The details of Tranche II have been summarized below:  

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Number of Shares
Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.) Number of Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,805,615 10 3,593,394 10

Granted during the year - - - -

Lapsed during the year 338,831 - 1,787,779 -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,466,784 1,805,615 10

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 4.20 - 5.20 -

Weighted average fair value of options granted - 0.06 - 0.06

NOTES
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The details of Tranche III have been summarized below:  

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Number of  
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.)

Number of  
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,805,615 10 3,593,394 10

Granted during the year - - - -

Lapsed during the year 338,831 - 1,787,779 -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,466,784 1,805,615 10

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 4.46 - 5.46 -

Weighted average fair value of options granted - 0.00 - 0.00

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options is Rs. 10. The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding 
at the end of the period are: 

march 31, 2012

Range of  
exercise prices

Number of  
options outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options (in years)

Weighted average 
exercise price

Tranche I Rs. 10 Nil - Rs. 10

Tranche II Rs. 10 1,466,784 4.20 Rs. 10

Tranche III Rs. 10 1,466,784 4.46 Rs. 10

march 31, 2011

Range of  
exercise  prices

Number of  options  
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options (in years)

Weighted  average  
exercise price

Tranche I Rs. 10       - - Rs. 10

Tranche II Rs. 10        1,805,615 5.20 Rs. 10

Tranche III Rs. 10        1,805,615  5.46 Rs. 10

Pursuant to the plan, the Company has computed the fair value of the employee stock option and has recognized a net compensation reversal 
cost of Rs. Nil (PY Rs.5) as the fair value of the options as of the date of grant.

Stock Options granted

Tranche I:  

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year ended March 31, 2007 was Rs. 0.21. The Black Scholes model had 
been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs: 

Vest 1 Vest 2 Vest 3 Vest 4
Exercise Price (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Expected Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Historical Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 8.03 8.53 9.03 11.03

Expected dividends per annum  (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Average risk-free interest rate 7.76% 7.82% 7.87% 8.09%

Expected dividend rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
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Tranche II: 

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year ended March 31, 2007 was Rs. 0.06. The Black Scholes model had 
been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs: 

Particulars Vest 1 Vest 2 Vest 3 Vest 4
Exercise Price (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Expected Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Historical Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 7.45 7.95 8.45 10.45

Expected dividends per annum  (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Average risk-free interest rate 7.59% 7.60% 7.61% 7.66%

Expected dividend rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Tranche III:

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year ended March 31, 2008 was Rs. Nil. The Black Scholes model had 
been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs: 

Particulars Vest 1 Vest 2 Vest 3 Vest 4
Exercise Price (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Expected Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Historical Volatility 0% 0% 0% 0%

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 6.71 7.21 7.71 9.71

Expected dividends per annum  (Rs.) 10 10 10 10

Average risk-free interest rate 7.51% 7.54% 7.57% 7.75%

Expected dividend rate 8.18% 8.18% 8.18% 8.18%

Expected Volatility – Since the Company is not listed, 0% volatility is assumed.      

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans of the statement of profit & loss  and on its financial position:

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

Rupees Lacs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2011

Rupees Lacs

Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share- based payment plans - (5)

Deferred Compensation Cost - -

Liability for employee stock option outstanding as at year end 1 1

b) Employee Share Appreciation Rights

During the year, the Company instituted an Employee Shared Based Payment Scheme, under which a grant was made on November 30, 
2011, as per detailed below:

Date of Grant November 30, 2011

Value of the Grant Rs. 518 lacs 

Contractual life 4 years 

Vesting Condition 
Achievement of Profit before tax (PBT) and Return on equity (ROE) targets as per approved business plan with 1/3rd of the 
grant vesting at the end of the 2nd,3rd and 4th anniversary of the grant 

Exercise  period Within 1 month of each date of vesting 

NOTES
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The estimated fair value of the grant at a notional value of Rs. 10 per unit as at the date of grant is Rs.10.42 per share as at March 31, 2012.

This was computed using the formula for estimating the valuation of the grant as per the formula provided in the scheme which is linked to the 
Net Book Value of the business.

Adjustment has been made for the resignations during the period from November 30, 2011 and

March 31, 2012 and the consequential impact of forfeiture of the grant 

The movement of the options granted during the year is as under 

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Grants Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -

Grant made during the year 518 -

Grants forfeited on resignation of employee 27 -

Grants vested - -

Grants exercised - -

Grants outstanding – unvested 491 -

Grants outstanding – vested and exercisable - -

Expenses arising from grants made 62 -

 
33. RETIREmENT AND OTHER EmPlOyEE BENEfITS 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure 
at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the amounts 
recognized in the balance sheet for the plan.

Statement of Profit and Loss 

Net employees benefit expense (recognised in Employee benefit expense):

Particulars March 31, 2012 
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Current service cost 52 92

Interest cost on benefit obligation 15 14

Expected return on plan assets (15) (16)

Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year 22 (57)

Past service cost - -

Net Benefit Expense 74 33

Actual return on plan assets - -
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BAlANCE SHEET

Details of Provision for gratuity:

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Defined benefit obligation 229 186

Fair value of plan assets 148 180

Less: Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -

Plan asset / (liability) (81) (6)

 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Opening defined benefit obligation 186 180

Interest cost 15 14

Current service cost 52 92

Benefits paid (41) (39)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation 15 (61)

Closing defined benefit obligation 229 186

 
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Opening fair value of plan assets 180 205

Expected return 15 16

Contributions by employer - 2

Benefits paid (41) (39)

Actuarial gains / (losses) (7) (4)

Closing fair value of plan assets 148 180

 
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Investments with insurer % 100 100

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date applicable to the period over 
which obligation is to be settled. There has been a significant change in the expected rate of return on assets due to the stock market scenario. 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Discount rate 8.50% 8.25%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.50% 8.25%

Employee Turnover
1% at each age for all and 20% 

to 60% categorywise
1% at each age for all and 20% 

to 60% categorywise

Future Salary rise 5.00% 5.00%

NOTES
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current period are as follows:   

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Defined benefit obligation 229 186

Plan assets 148 180

Surplus / (deficit) 81 (6)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 56 (36)

Experience adjustments on plan assets (7) (4)

34. PROvISION fOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 22, 2010, had approved the proposal to exit the market at certain locations, pursuant to an 
exercise of reorganising operations. 

ASI 30 issued by ICAI, defines ‘onerous contract’ as a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. Accordingly, the Company had identified certain contracts pertaining to lease 
rental and employee compensation payable for the notice period, which were onerous in nature, pertaining to the abovementioned locations 
and had provided for the obligation, in accordance with the recognition criteria for provision as per AS 29. 

The details of the same are given in the table below:     

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Provision at the beginning of the year - 345

Add : Provision made during the year - -

Less : Amounts utilized during the year - (288)

Less : Unused amounts reversed during the year - (57)

Provision at the end of the year - -

35. ANCIllARy BORROWING COSTS 

The movement in ancillary borrowing costs is as under :

Particulars March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

March 31, 2011
Rupees Lacs

Opening at the beginning of the year 385 678

Add : Payments made during the year 1049 510

Less : Amortised during the year (789) (803)

Closing at the end of the year 645 385
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36.  The Company identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) by 
obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based on the information received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be 
registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year ended together with interest paid/
payable is disclosed below:

Sr No Particulars
March 31, 2012

Rupees Lacs
March 31, 2011

Rupees Lacs

1
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

7 -

2
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made  to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year  

- -

3
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

- -

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of each accounting year; - -

5

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose 
of disallowance as  a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

- -

37.  As required by RBI circular no DNBS.CC.PD.No.265/03.10.01/2011-12  dated March 21, 2012 the outstanding loan against gold jewellery 
as a  percentage of total assets is 0.003% (March 31, 2011: Nil) 

38.  As required by RBI circular no DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 2, 2012 the details of frauds noticed / reported 
are as below:

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2012
Rupees Lacs

For the year ended
March 31, 2011

Rupees Lacs

Amount involved               62               99 

Amount recovered               12               20 

Amount written off / provided               47               79 

Balance 3                              -   

39.  Till the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company was using pre–revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act 1956, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended Mar 31, 2012 the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 
1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year’s classification, 
where applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra  

Chairman CEO and Managing Director

Sd/- Sd/-

Anand Natarajan Pankaj Malik

Chief Operating Officer General Manager, Finance and Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 19, 2012

NOTES
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NOTES TO THE BAlANCE SHEET Of A NON-BANkING fINANCIAl COmPANy 

(As required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial (Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms 
(Reserve Bank of India ) Directions, 2007)

Sr. No Particulars  (Rupees Lacs)

LIABILITIES SIDE:    

1 Loans and advances availed by the Non Banking Financial ` inclusive of interest accrued thereon 
but not paid:

Amount  
Outstanding

Amount  
Overdue

(a) Debentures (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)    

   Secured 53,590 -

   Unsecured 27,340 -

  (b) Deferred Credits - -

  (c) Term Loans 111,339 -

  (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -

  (e) Commercial Paper 123,644 -

  (f)  Public Deposits - -

  (g) Other Loans 33,514 -

2 Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued  
thereon but not paid):

Amount  
Outstanding

Amount  
Overdue

  (a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - -

  (b)  In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of 
security

- -

  (c) Other public deposits - -

ASSETS SIDE:    

3 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in 
 (4) below] :

  Amount 
Outstanding

  (a) Secured   111,464

  (b) Unsecured   253,128

4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards  
AFC activities

  Amount 
Outstanding

  (i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :    

   (a) Finance Lease -           -   

   (b) Operating Lease -           -   

  (ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:    

   (a) Assets on hire -   -

   (b) Repossessed Assets  -          -   

  (iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities :    

   (a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -           -   

   (b) Loans other than (a) above -           -   
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Sr. No Particulars  (Rupees Lacs)

5 Break-up of Investments :                       

  Current Investments    

  1. Quoted:    

  (i) Shares:    

  (a) Equity  -          -   

  (b) Preference -           -   

  (ii) Debentures and Bonds -           -   

  (iii) Units of mutual funds -           -   

  (iv) Government Securities -           -   

  (v) Others    

  2. Unquoted:    

  (i) Shares:    

  (a) Equity -           -   

  (b) Preference -           -   

  (ii) Debentures and Bonds -           -   

  (iii) Units of mutual funds -           -   

  (iv) Government Securities -  507

  (v) Others – Certificate of Deposits -  26,621

                  – Commercial papers -           -   

     

  Long Term Investments    

  1. Quoted:    

  (i) Shares:    

  (a) Equity -           -   

  (b) Preference -           -   

  (ii) Debentures and Bonds -           -   

  (iii) Units of mutual funds -           -   

  (iv) Government Securities -           -   

  (v) Others  -          -   

  2. Unquoted:    

  (i) Shares:    

  (a) Equity -      8,970 

  (b) Preference -           -   

  (ii) Debentures and Bonds -           -   

  (iii) Units of mutual funds -           -   

  (iv) Government Securities -           -   

  (v) Others -           -   

NOTES 

68



FULLERTON INDIA CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED  • ANNUAL REPORT 2011-12

Sr. No Particulars (Rupees Lacs)

6 Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances 

  CATEGORY AMOUNT NET OF PROVISION

    SECURED UNSECURED TOTAL

  1. Related Parties      

   (a) Subsidiaries - - -

   (b) Companies in the same group - - -

   (c) Other related parties - - -

  2. Other than related parties 111,464 253,128 364,592

  TOTAL 111,464 253,128 364,592

7 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

  Category Market Value / Break up 
or fair value or NAV

Book Value  
(Net of Provisions)

  1. Related Parties    

   (a) Subsidiaries                            202        202 

   (b) Companies in the same management                         8,763     8,763 

   (c) Other related parties  -          -   

  2. Other than related parties                       27,133   27,133 

  Total                       36,098   36,098 

8 Other Information   Amount

  (i) Gross Non-Performing Assets    

   (a) Related parties    

   (b) Other than related parties   7,994

  (ii) Net Non-Performing Assets    

   (a) Related parties    

   (b) Other than related parties   7,046

  (iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt            -   
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Gan Chee Yen Shantanu Mitra  

Chairman CEO and Managing Director

Sd/- Sd/-

Anand Natarajan Pankaj Malik

Chief Operating Officer General Manager, Finance and Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 19, 2012

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Fullerton India Home Finance 
Company Ltd

Fullerton Foundation for Social 
& Economic Development

1 Financial years of the Subsidiary Company ended on 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2012

2 Shares of the subsidiary held on the above date and extent of holding

a)       Equity Shares (of Rs 10 each) 20,00,000 23,575

b)       Extent of Holding 100% 100%

3 Net aggregate amount of Profit/(Losses) of the Subsidiary for the period so 
far as it concerns members of Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd.

i)        Not dealt within the accounts of the Holding Company

a)       For the financial year of the Subsidiary 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2012

b)       For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary/since it 
          became the Holding Company’s Subsidiary

355,513 -59,303

ii)       Deal within the holding company’s accounts 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2012

a)       For the financial year of the Subsidiary Nil Nil

b)       For the previous financial years of the Subsidiary/since it    
          became the Holding Company’s Subsidiary

4 Material changes if any between the end of financial year of the subsidiary 
company and that of the Holding Company

NA NA

5 Additional information on Subsidiary Companies

Share Capital 20,000,000 235,750

Reserves 355,513 -59,303

Total Assets 20,413,163 235,750

Total Liabilities 57,650 59,303

Investment (expect in case of investment in subsidiaries) - -

Turnover 815,293 -

Profit before Taxation 746,422 -12,500

Provision for Taxation 570,326 -

Profit after Taxation 176,096 -12,500

Proposed Dividend (including Dividend Distribution Tax thereon) - -

STATEmENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 Of THE COmPANIES ACT, 
1956 RElATING TO SUBSIDIARy COmPANIES

NOTES
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Fullerton India:

Fulfilling aspirations 

of a growing India


